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OUR MISSION

Quality does not happen by chance. Itis a
relentless pursuit of perfection.Each one
of us at KIMS will endeavour to provide
the highest quality of care toour patients.

Beyond the wonderful ambience,
: : ; advanced technology and professional
Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao expertise at KIIVFS. thereis sor'f'\ethmg
anaging Director more... the magic touch of caring.

OUR VISION

entia y in * Quality services, quality performance to
1g an unm 1 every patient, every time

* To satisfy clients on each and every
project/plan we execute

* To provide support and services that
exceeds customers' expectations

* To scale greater heights, set new
standards and redefine the lifeline of
healthcare

3054 BEDS 922 DOCTORS 2683 NURSES = 1306 PARAMEDICS = 2444 ADMIN

Awards & Excellence
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Hospital' Award (2017). | award given by Tirmes of India Survey 2015 | to be owarded 2015 - 2016
i Times of India 2017, i Green Operation Theatre

i Certification (2015-2016)




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

[ , 1 A
: \\alel ' s
Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao Dr. B. Abhinay Mrs. Anitha
Managing Director Director & CEO Wholetime Director
z - ‘ B A -
~ T ‘
V< >4
Ms. Jyoti Prasad Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik
Independent Director Independent Director Investor Director

;.' p

>

Mr. Shantanu Rastogi
Investor Director

HEALTH IS WEALTH... PREVENTION IS BETTER THAN CURE...

We are one of the leading multi-disciplinary integrated private healthcare services providers in
southern India, operating a chain of multispecialty hospitals with focus on tertiary and quaternary
healthcare. We have evolved as the largest corporate healthcare group in Andhra Pradesh and
Telangana with our network of nine hospitals. We offer a comprehensive bouquet of healthcare
services across specialties and super specialties through our network of nine hospitals under the
“KIMS Hospital” brand. Our flagship hospital at Secunderabad. is one of the largest private hospitals
in India at asingle location (excluding medical colleges), with a capacity of 1,000 beds.




BREAKING BOUNDARIES... REACHING NEW HEIGHTS

10.2 KG TUMOUR REMOVED
FROM PATIENT'S ABDOMEN

KIMS doctors give & new lease of ife to & farmer from Warangal

*9_ U

# Athough such cncars are
tommonky seen, the slaz of
Tumor mises the surgery
unique

# The surgery lacted for over 6
heurs; The glant tumour
deculed almost the entine
abosing] canity

# The operation required
precise dissection in order to
prewent injury tovia organs
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KIMS surgeons remove cyst
from pregnant woman’s ovary

CITY BUREAU
Hyderabad

Surgeons at Krishna Insti-
tute of Medical Sciences
(KIMS), Secunderabad, per-
formed a laparoscopic sur-
gery on a woman who was
into fourth month ?ufl{:re -
nancy and success

Mgty beroat tars e e
s save

of mother and the foetus.
According to doctors, 27-

year-cld Nandini was ad-
mitted to hospital when she
was nine-week pregnant. At
'31 separate medical faci]i:lx

e t woman was di-

Przgnmth ovarian cyst,

Semor gynaecologist, Dr
Vasundara Cheepuglupalll,
who led the team of sur-
geons, said ovarian cysts
could grow to large sizes,
take up space and aE})ly
pressure on the intestines,
ureter and urinary bladder,

Tests had revealed that the
pregnant woman had 20 cm
ovarian cyst.

“As the patient was in her
first trimester, she wasmed-
ically managed till 13-week
gestation. Then we took de-
cided to go for minimally in-
vasive lnparosl copic surgery
to ensure less post opera-
té]oltl wmpgacﬁtlgl}ﬁ said Dr

i. woman
hammd and will be
discharged soon.
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‘Da Vinci Si’ robot in city

Oumn Bumeatr

IMS Hospitals announced

the Installaton of 2 next gen-
erution surgical robotie system
‘Dia Vinci ST madel in its facility
in Secunderabad on Thursday,

The surgical robot costs two
million LSO Currently, eight dae-
Lo bnsix medieal specialisa thons
inclnding oncology, gynecology,
urokgy, ent, gastroenterology and
general surgery at KIMS ame per-
forming rohotics surgeries.

Dr Bhaskar Rao, CEC and MDD,
KIMS Hospitals said, “With in-
Az AWAREESE A ONG U pa-
tients, we felt the need of acquir-
ing the model in place of aur old
S0 model aequired in 2011, for
giving better care and to perform
mare complex surgical proce-
dures, which etherwise not possi-
blewith laparoscopy.”

1 bt it years, KIMS Hospi-
talz has eome a bong way i leam-
ing und mastering the robotic
technology by its elinical applica-
tians In the succe ssful outeonwe of
700 procedures,” he said,

Shiring the features of the ro-
Lk, b saie, “The: model includes

user interface for

setup and OR {operating room)
Lurnover and an utmsubjhtfl’ur

dual } o supprort
Eraining and mmuml imvasion
during surgery, enharced high-

definition 3D vision for superion

digital OR i

trointestingl Surgeen,
Maadhu, Surgical Oueologist, Dr
Kalyan Chakravarthy, ENT, Dr

De D

Same of the doctors whe are in
charpe of the rabotie programme
include Dr Gopichand, Urologist,

Suresh Kumar G, General Sur-
geon, Dr MBY Pragad, General
Surgeon, Dr Vijuy Ku miar Bada,
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KIMS Kurnool c;ccessfuﬂy
performs complicated surgery

tos

Kurnool: Doctors at KIMS
Kurnool Hospital saved life of
a 24-year-old male patient by
performing retrograde in-
trarenal surgery (RIRS). The
case of this young patient is
complicated as well as rare as
he had 2 stonmes in his ectopic
kidney. An ectopic kidney is a
congenital defect in which a
kidney is located in an abnor-
mal position. Ectopic Kidney is
a rare condition which is seen
in 1 in 3000 people. Having
Kidney stones in ectopic kid-
neys is much more complicated
and needs high expertise med-
ical team.

The patient was brought to
KIMS Kurnool with com-
plaints of pain in abdomen on
and off in the last 6 months.
Upon investigation, it was
found that he has arare condi-
tion called Ectopic Kidney and
2 stones in the left kidney, sized

ave 24-vr-old youth

kidney normal size and echo-
texture, Patient is suffering for
the last one year visiting many
hospitals without treatment
because of the complexity of
the surgery.

Speaking about the case, Dr.
Manoj Kumar Y, Consultant
Urologist, KIMS Kurnool Hos-
pitals, said, “The case of Kidney
stones has become more com-
mon in past decade and have
been steadily increasing. How-
ever, this case got more com-
plicated due the differentloca-
tion of his kidney.

RIRS was done on this pa-
tientwithin 15 days of reaching
KIMS Kurnool relieving him
from pain and bringing him
back to normal life. The Urol-
ogy team at KIMS Kurnool with
experienced RIRS surgeon Dr.
Manoj Kumar, are performing
many complex kidney stones
and stones in the paediatric pa-

clinical capability, an updated  DrNeena Desai. Gynecologist, Dr  Surgical G 1I8Smm and 4 mm each. Right tients successfully.

11-month baby goes thru complex cardiac surgery
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BREAKING BOUNDARIES... REACHING NEW HEIGHTS

Recurrent fungal
infections and
antibiotic
resistance are fast
oming a
growing public
health concern,
with certain
groups of

people falllrlg in
the high-risk

[ lteslstanco nﬁ

o Lt s eyl

pul e,

Wt rveurrant bifectiong noted

it (e ks arw brmune-cor-

promibed, sufficic from can:
i

ity dlabeiic: In namre

It tatings

Bodts . tltmats

In recurrent fuagal §

Alang with MMM“ o antitd-
otics, makding It very impoattant
for thoss

FIGHTING AGAINST
FUNGAL INFECTIONS
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Doctors at KIMS remove 2 kidney
stones from 4-year-old boy

4 yaar-old-boy with his parents (Right] Dr Rafig Ahmed, Pzeditrician, Dr Manoj Kumar Consultant uralogist and andrologist and Dr T Anvind
Reddy radiologist who performed surgary ta the boy

Kurnool: Doctors at KIMS Kurnool
Hospital saved life of a 4-year-old
boy by performing retrograde intra
renal surgery (RIRS). The child had
2 kidney stones, measuring 1.2 cm
on right side and uring 11cm

stenting torelieve the kid from pain
and bring him back to normal life,
Speaking to the media, Dr. Manoj
Kumar Y. Consultant Urologist,
KIMS Kurnool Hospitals, sald, “The
Tidney the pediatri

on lift side. The Retrograde renal
procedure was done on both the
sides within 15 days gap along with

stage has become more common in
past decade and have been steadily
increasing. For this little child, both

the stones are measuringmote than
1 em and needed immediate atten-
tion and removal. We have taken up
ap dure called RIRS (Retrograd
intrarenal surgery). In this proce-
dure, the surgery is performed
within the kidney using a viewing
tube called a fiberoptic endoscope to
remove the stone.

Six-yr-old undergoes rare surgery

CITY BUREAU
Hycararas

Hearl surgeons from Kr-
ishna Institute of Med-
ical Sciences (KIMS)
performed a complex
cardiac procedure
kngwn Double
Switch erlllon'tma
Gyear-old  girl  from
Sudan.

The young girl had a
Tare ital heart dis-
order ‘Corrected trans-

ation of great arter-

Dr Al Kumar Dharmapuram alors with the girl from
Spdan who underwent a rare heart surgery at KTMS

RIMS Dr Anil
Dharmapuram,
Lhe- y%hﬂ under-
wentl‘ﬁe stage of the
operation a year
callzd the Pulmnng;
which in-
vdvesgtla acircular
d in the
arteryﬂutis
off from the left
ventricle, making the left
ventricle work against
Tesistance and tram it to
e eligible for the second
of the

KIMS performs complicated
heart surgery on woman

EXPRESS NEWS SERYICE @ Anantapur

CARDIOLOGISTS of KIMS Saveera
Hospitals, Anantapur, gave & new lease
of life to a T2-vear-old woman who was
at high surgical risk.

Dr Bala Kishore and Dr Moode Sand-
eep, Interventional Cardiclogists along
with their team, performed a minimal-
ly invasive stenting on the patient who
had very complex bifureation blockage
of heart vessels. This is an alternative
procedure for open heart surgery.

When Narayanamma was brought to
KIMS Saveera Hosplitals, she was ina
critical condition and was diagnosed
with 50 per cent reduced heart pump-
ing capacity and kidney failure,
Though there is a need to go for an open
heart surgery toremove those complex
blocks, due to high surgical risk, the
doctors did not go for it in this case. In

complicated cases like these, minimal-
ly invasive stenting can be performed
under experienced cardiologists and a
hospital where there is infrastructure
to deal with such cases.

Speaking on the occasion, Sandeep

“This stenting procedure gives

hope to patients who are otherwise at
high risk for conventional open heart
surgery The results achieved with this
procedure has fewer complications
with good long-term outcome. This is
also an effective low-cost procedure.”

Bala Kishore sald, “After thorough
analysis, we proceeded with stenting of
the complex bifircated artery. We nsed
high grade devices to manage this
stenting and puncture site, Procedure
was completed in two hours and we
have placed three stents. She was mobi-
lised by evening and discharged after
48 hours.”

ies" in which the heart's
lower two chambers, the
ventricles are in reverse
posltlom. Asaresult, the

mgl:h:mbex
nf I.he tLe. left ven-
tricle is weak because it

is pumping blood to
hnfs instead of the

'[‘o correct the disor-
der, the weaker left ven-
tricle must be trained
over aperiod to improve

its strength so that it can
m}l blood to the entire

y. After that, second
stage of operation called
Dauble Switch is per-
formed. According to
pediatric cardisc sur-

heraye:r,l‘he.glr]
came back for the sec-
ond stage of the surgery.
Aﬂerux: maﬁ:;-:n sur-
, the gir TECOV-
gwﬂgﬂnﬁa}lynﬂms

recently discharged.

Doctor feted for performing
1,000 kldney transplants

CIY BUREAL
Hydorabad

by
conducting 1,000 kidney
transplant surgeries at asin-
unit that is managed by
im at Krishna Institute of
Medical Sciences (EIMS).
On the occasion of com-
pleting the transplant sur-
geries, KTMS on Sunday or-
ised a conference ‘Past,
ent and Future of
Surgeries in
Later, the semior
1 £ 1, falict

wi
;a.ésib for conducting nearly

transplant su%nes in
h}:.r]llfe time and 1,0 Loy

t at

= e g
completed 1,000 cases at
this unit. It was possible
enly because of the faith and
courage shown by our pa-
tients and continuous sup-

port for all the depart-

Lir § Sahariah being felicitated by KIMS afficials for succossfilly
Jrerforming over LI iidrey teansplants.

nearly 1,300 transplant sur-
geries at Mahavir Hospitals,
Masab Tank, He has also
g:rformed nearly 200 ca-
ver ki lanta-
tions in Hyderabad, whichis
considered as one of the

geon in the country.
“We would like to con-

gratulate, Dr S Sahariah and
his team who has best suc-
Soing the Both Iving and
-
ceased donor _transplant
for many
." Dr Bhaskar Rag, MD,
S Hospitals, said.
On the occasion, a panel
of senior neghhrulusrsta
ances in
idney Diseases
(CKD}tlnt took place in the
last one decade.
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NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the 18" Annual General Meeting of the Krishna Institute of Medical
Sciences Limited will be held on Monday, the 24™ day of August, 2020 at 3.00 PM, at “KIMS
Hospitals” # 1-8-31/1, Minister’s Road, Secunderabad - 500003 to transact the following business:

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of financial statements:

To consider and adopt the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31* March 2020 and the reports of the Board of Directors
(“the Board”) and Auditors thereon.

2. Appointment of Ms. D. Anitha as a director liable to retire by rotation:

To appoint a director in place of Ms. D. Anitha (DIN No: 00025480) who retires by rotation and,
being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act 2013, the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for reappointment of Ms. D. Anitha (DIN: 00025480) as a director, to the extent that he
is liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director or the company secretary of the Company be and is
hereby severally authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Payment of remuneration to Cost Auditor M/s. Sagar & Associates, for the financial vear
2020-21.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 148 and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), a remuneration
of Rs. 5 Lakhs excluding applicable taxes, being paid to M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost
Accountants who were appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company by the Board of Directors,
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending on March
31, 2021, be and is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

Date: 21.07.2020 By the order of the Board of Directors of
Place: Hyderabad For Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Sd/-

Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary
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Notes

The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed
and forms part of this Notice.

A Member Entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote instead of
himself and the Proxy need not be a Member. Proxies in order to be effective must be received
by the company not later than forty eight (48) hours before the meeting. Proxies submitted on
behalf of Ilimited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate
resolutions/authority, as applicable.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty in number and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order
of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a
certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their respective specimen
signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts are requested to write to the
Company at an early date, to enable the management to keep the information ready at the
meeting.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by
allowing paperless compliance's by the companies and has issued circulars stating that service of
notice/documents including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this
green initiative of the Government in full measure, members are requested to register their e-mail
addresses in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned
Depository Participants. Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to send their
e-mail address to the following:

cs@kimshospitals.com

The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent by electronic mode
to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories, unless
any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same.
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Explanatory Statement

(Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

The following Explanatory Statements, as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, set

out all material facts relating to the business under Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice dated
21.07.2020

Item No 3

The Board of Directors, approved the re-appointment of M/s. Sagar & Associates Cost Accountants as
the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 at a fee of Rs. 5 Lakhs, exclusive of
applicable taxes.

In accordance with Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (“the Act”), the remuneration so payable to the Cost Auditors is
required to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.

None of the directors/key managerial personnel of the Company/their relatives is in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, directly or indirectly in the proposed resolution.

The resolution as set out in items no. 3 of this Notice is accordingly re-commended for your approval.

Date: 21.07.2020 By Order of the Board of
Place: Hyderabad Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Sd/-

Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 18™ Annual Report on the business and operations of
the Company and the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

1.Financial Summary of the Company

Standalone Consolidated

Particulars Rs. In Million Rs. In Million
2019-20 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2018-19
Total Revenue 7970.60 7133.86 | 11287.28 | 9237.37
Profit/(Loss) Before Interest and Depreciation 2097.36 609.26 | 2510.78 812.81
Less: Finance Cost 205.69 333.79 399.42 407.96
Less: Depreciation and amortization expenses 426.62 409.70 706.10 521.38
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 1465.05 (134.23) | 140526 | (116.53)

Less: Income Tax

- Current Tax 387.41 345.55 432.98 386.09
- Deferred Tax Charge (113.49) (43.23) | (154.79) (41.54)
- Tax Pertaining to earlier years (19.93) - (23.65) 2.15
Profit/(Loss) After Tax * 1211.06 (436.55) 1150.72 | (463.23)
Add: Share of Profit / (Loss) in Associate 0.00 0.00 0 0.00
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 1211.06 (436.55) 1150.72 | (463.23)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income (9.04) (12.91) (10.01) (12.20)
Total Comprehensive Income 1202.02 (449.46) 1140.71 | (475.43)

* During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had entered into a Securities Subscription and
Purchase Agreement (SSPA) along with General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd (“new investors™),
India Advantage Fund (“old investor”) and other existing shareholders through which new investors
had purchased few shares from the existing shareholders and entire shares from the old investors.
Further, the Profit and Loss account for the previous financial year ended 31 March 2019, had an
impact of Rs. 991.28 million due to the provisions as per the terms of the above contract. The terms
of the contract with the new investors had resulted in de-recognition of the same.

Excluding the above charge which had reversed during the previous year ended 31 March 2019,
company’s PAT for FY 2019-20 stands at Rs. 1211.06 million for standalone and Rs. 1150.72
million for consolidated.

2. Brief description of the Company’s working during the year/state of Company’s affair
a. KIMS Standalone: During the year under review, your Company achieved total revenue of

Rs. 7970.60 million. The total revenue grew by 11.73% as compared to the previous year.
Total Profit for the year is Rs.1202.02 millions.
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b. KIMS Consolidated: During the year under review, your Company achieved total revenue of
Rs.11287.28 million. The total revenue grew by 22.19% as compared to the previous year.
Total Profit for the year is Rs. 1140.71 million.

c¢. Arunodaya Hospitals Pvt. Ltd (Subsidiary Company): has recorded the total revenue of
Rs.393.46 million during the financial year 2019-20.

d. KIMS Hospital Enterprises Pvt. Ltd (Subsidiary Company): has recorded the total
revenue of Rs.1422.43 million during the financial year 2019-20.

e. Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (Subsidiary Company):. The
subsidiary company has recorded a total revenue of Rs.559.43 million during the financial
year 2019-20.

f. Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (Subsidiary Company): The
subsidiary company has recorded a total revenue of Rs. 585.10 million during the financial
year 2019-20.

g. KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited (Subsidiary Company): During the Year your
Company has Acquired 55% of Equity Stake in Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals Private Limited
thereon became Subsidiary of your Company. Subsequently with the approval of
Shareholders Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals Private Limited changed its name to KIMS
Hospital Kurnool Private Limited.

The subsidiary company has recorded a total revenue of Rs.409.82 million during the
financial year 2019-20.

h. KIMS Hospitals Pvt. Ltd., KIMS Swastha Pvt. Ltd., KIMS Cuddles Pvt. Ltd. and KIMS
Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Pvt. Ltd. are the subsidiaries of your Company, which are still
under the process of setting up its infrastructure to run the hospital.

3. Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic.

The outbreak of COVID-19 in many countries has brought about disruptions to businesses around the
world and uncertainty to the global economy. Your Company is closely monitoring the impact of the
pandemic on all aspects of its business, including how it will impact its employees, vendors and
business partners. Your Company based on the information available to date, both internal and
external, considered the uncertainty relating to the COVID-19 pandemic in assessing its impact.
Based on the current estimates, your Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of assets,
and does not foresee any material adverse impact on its operations. As the outbreak continues to
evolve, your Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic
condition.

4. Change in the nature of business, if any
There was no change in the nature of Business during the year.
5. Dividend

Keeping in view the expansion plans of the Company and upgrading the available facilities at the
Hospital, the Board has not recommended any dividend this year.
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6. Transfer of Reserves

The Company has recorded a profit of Rs. 1202.02 million (Standalone) for the period 2019-20 and
the same was transferred to the head of other Equity.

7. Share Capital

There was no change in Authorized Share Capital of the Company during the Financial Year 2019-20.
The paid up share capital as on 31% March 2020 is Rs. 74,48,95,520/-. During the period under review
the company has not made any allotment in the Financial Year 2019-20.

8. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Composition of the Board: The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company consists of an
optimal combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors which represent a mix
of professionalism, knowledge and experience.

The Board brings in the guidance, leadership and an independent view to the Company’s management
while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities, thereby ensuring that management adheres to the
ethics, transparency and disclosure norms.

As on date of this report, the Board comprises of 7 (Seven) Directors, of whom, 3 (Three) are
Executive Director and 4 (Four) are Non-Executive Directors. Amongst the Non-Executive Directors,
2 (Two) are Independent Directors and 2 (Two) are Investor Directors. The Non-Executive Directors
bring an external and wider perspective in Board’s deliberations and decisions. The size and
composition of the Board conforms to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition of the Board of Directors

Name of Director Designation
Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao Managing Director
Ms. D. Anitha Whole-time Director
Dr. Abhinay Bollineni Director & CEO
Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao Independent Director
Ms. Jyothi Prasad Independent Director
Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik Investor Director
Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Investor Director

Independent Directors

Your Independent Directors fulfill all the conditions for being Independent to the Company, as
stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013. All Independent Directors have given the declaration that
they meet the criteria of Independence as laid down under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Key Managerial Personnel and Change in Directors during the year

During the year Dr. Abhinay Bollineni was appointed as Chief Executive officer (CEO) of the
Company.

9. Board Functioning & Meetings
Your Company’s Board plays a pivotal role in ensuring good governance. In accordance with

Companies Act, 2013, the Board meets at least once in every quarter and if required, additional
meetings are held.
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During the year ended March 31, 2020, Five (5) Board Meetings were held on (i) June 10, 2019 (ii)
July 3, 2019 (iii) August 19, 2019 (iv) December 5, 2019 (v) March 5, 2020.

10. Committees of the Board

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has following Board level
committees:

(a) Audit and Risk Management Committee;
(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

(c¢) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Following is the composition of the committees as on the date of this Report:

Audit and Risk Management Nomination and Corporate Social
Committee Remuneration Committee Responsibility Committee
Ms. Jyothi Prasad Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao

Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao Ms. Jyothi Prasad Dr. Abhinay Bollineni

Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao

11. Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, approved a policy
for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and for determining their
remuneration, qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of a director.

12. Extract of Annual Return

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT 9 as a part of this
Annual Report is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE - L.

13. Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies

The information on subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies pursuant to Section 129(3) of
the Act read with rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as
ANNEXURE - II in Form AOC - 1.

14. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties.

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were on arm’s length basis.
All the details regarding the contracts and arrangements entered with related parties is annexed
herewith as ANNEXURE - III in Form AOC —2.

15. Auditors

During the year in the 17" Annual General Meeting, S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP (having
Registration Number: 101049W/ E300004) Chartered Accountants were appointed as Auditors of the
Company for the term of 5 years i. e. from the conclusion of 17" AGM to the conclusion of 22™
AGM .
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16. Cost Auditors

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
appointed M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost Accountants, Hyderabad (FRN 000118) to audit the cost
accounts of the Company for the financial year 2020-2021 on a remuneration of Rs. 5.00 lakhs.

As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the cost auditor is required
to be placed before the Members in a general meeting for their ratification. Accordingly, a resolution
seeking Member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost
Accountants, Hyderabad (FRN 000118) is included at Item No. 3 of the Notice convening the Annual
General Meeting.

The Company has maintained cost records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014 in respect of
healthcare services.

17. Internal Audit & Controls

The Company has appointed M/s. PricewaterhouseCoopers as its Internal Auditor of the Company
and accordingly they have submitted their report to the Audit Committee.

Their scope of work include review of processes for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review
of operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes and assessing the internal control
strengths in all areas. Internal Auditors findings are discussed with the operational departments and
suitable corrective actions are taken as per their directions on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency
in operations.

18. Statutory Auditors Report and Secretarial Auditors Report

The Directors hereby confirm that the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have reported that
there are no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or any frauds made by the company in their
respective audit reports for the year ended 31* March, 2020.

19. Secretarial Audit Report

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, M/s IKR & Associates Practicing
Company Secretary has been appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company. The report of the
Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as ANNEXURE - 1V to this report. The report is self-explanatory and
do not call for any comments.

20. Vigil Mechanism

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism
policy for directors and employees to report genuine concerns was proposed and approved by the
Board of the Directors in the Board meeting held on February 22, 2017. The Audit and Risk
Management committee will oversee the vigil mechanism established by the Company and the
Chairman of Audit and Risk Management committee shall directly hear grievances of victimization of
employees and directors, if any, who use vigil mechanism to report genuine concerns; and the policy
is uploaded on the website of the Company at www.kimshospitals.com.
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21. Performance Evaluation of the Board and the Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the annual performance evaluation was
conducted including the working of the Board and its Committees. This evaluation was conducted by
the Managing Director of the Company on the performance and effective functioning of the Board.
Evaluation of the Board was based on criteria such as composition and role of the Board, Board
communication and relationships, functioning of Board Committees, succession planning, etc.

Evaluation of Directors was based on criteria such as participation and contribution in Board and
Committee meetings, representation of shareholder interests and enhancing shareholder value,
experience and expertise to provide feedback and guidance to top management on business strategy,
governance and risk, understanding of the organization’s strategy, risk and environment, etc. The
performance evaluation of the Managing Director and other Directors was carried out by the
Independent Directors in their meeting.

22. Risk Assessment and Minimization

The Board of Directors of the Company formed an Audit and Risk Management Committee with a

defined roles and responsibilities, which includes evaluation of internal financial controls and risk

management systems and report for approval of the Board thereon.

23. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the

financial statements relate and the date of the report.

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

24. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and companies operations in future.

25. Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Chapter V of the Act,
during the year under review.

26. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186

The details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the financial statements.

27. Particulars of Employees

There are no employees in the Company who falls under the purview of Section 197 read with Rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

28. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo
are as follows:
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a) Conservation of energy

Particulars required under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (accounts)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable as the Company is not energy conservative; however your company is
taking necessary steps to save the energy.

b) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

Your Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses. Your Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency
exposure as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

29. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per the Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
committee has been formed by the company. The areas for CSR activities are promoting health care
including preventive health care, promoting education and enhancing vocation skills to enhance
employment opportunities. The Company is required to spend a minimum of Rs. 1.47 crores for the
purpose of CSR for the year 2019-20. Your Company has spent an amount of Rs. 1.50 crores towards
CSR activity the details of which are mentioned in the notes to accounts in the Financial Statements.
A report on CSR activity is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE -V to this report.

30. Human Resources

Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets. Your Company
continuously invests in attracting, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number
of programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway.

31. Obligation of company under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention,
prohibition and redressal) Act, 2013.

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act, The Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9™
December, 2013. Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal Complaints
Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of any women
employee.

Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and has
set up Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year Company has received Nil
complaints.

32. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013, shall state that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

10
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(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively and

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

33. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years.
Therefore there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF).

34. Acknowledgment

Your Directors place on record their gratitude to the Central Government, State Governments and all
other Government agencies for the assistance, co-operation and encouragement they have extended to
the Company.

Your Directors also take this opportunity to extend a special thanks to the medical fraternity and
patients for their continued cooperation, patronage and trust reposed in the Company. Your Directors
also greatly appreciate the commitment and dedication of all the employees at all levels, that has
contributed to the growth and success of the Company.

Your Directors also thank all the strategic partners, business associates, Banks, financial institutions
and other stakeholders including the shareholders for their assistance, co-operation and
encouragement to the Company during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Krishna Institute of medical Sciences Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao D. Anitha
Date: 21.07.2020 Managing Director Wholetime Director
(DIN No.0000898S5) (DIN No. 00025480)
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ANNEXURE 1

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U55101TG1973PLC040558

Registration Date

26/07/1973

Name of the Company

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Cl el l

Category/Sub-category of
the Company

Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non-Government
Company.

Address of the Registered
office & contact details

D.No.1-8-31/1,Minister's Road, Secunderabad-3., Telangana
— 500003

S

Whether listed company

No

Name, Address & contact
details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

KFin Technologies Private Limited

Selenium, Tower- B, Plot No 31 & 32 Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally = Mandal, Hyderabad,
Telangana 500032.

13



142

(L8)T

001

Arerpisqng

00901 TDLd910ZDL00TS8N

BIpU] "BUBSUR[SL ¥8000S

— peqeiopAH ‘repuey Ajfedwesduluog ‘a3e[IA
ndepuoy] “100[J 15| ZT-300Id ‘H/SS/111-1'0N oo
PN jeALld S9[ppn) SINIY

(L8)T

001

Arerpisqng

L86STTDLALTIOTDLO0ESSN

“eIpu] ‘eue3ue[o],

‘80005~ peqeIopAH ‘Aj[edwedul[lieg “indepuoy
“JOO[ ST “1-}201d “d/SS/111-1"ON oo
paywI JeAlld (Femsaueqnyg) [endsoH SINIY

(L8)T

001

Arerpisqng

98LYE0DLdSTOTANOTIS8N

1102SY
- 210pu] ‘prOY"g'V “IUeafey ] BOYYD ‘€S| d10pu]
PYWIT S1BALL] BYISEMS ST

(L8)T

001

Arerpisqng

C185600.Ld¥10cdVOI1S8N

€01 €ES - Yysepeld eIypuy

‘Kipunwyeley ‘jedreaeueq ‘[00yoS 1ueyIMOD)
ug reaN ¢-wendiypuen ‘ezejd USS ‘1/S1-L-8L #
pajwiI] S)eALd S[eNdSOH SIATY

(L8)T

9TSL

Arerpisqng

€6L5800LdET0TOLI6ISEN

BIPUJ "BUBBUR[DL, ¥8000S

-peqelopAH ‘[epuelN A[edwesur[lasa3e[IA
Indepuoy] ‘gd/55 0N £2AINS 98/ -1 0N SuIp[ing
paywry reatlqd sosudiouy rendsoy SINTY

(L8)T

€8'LS

Arerpisqng

9108500.Ld800CdVOI158(1

100ZES — Us3peid BIYPUY ‘WR[NYBLS ‘Uonoung
Auo10D) Nd ‘O[dwa], ene( JeaN ‘proy 23plig MaN
‘panwurg kALl s[endsoy eAepounty

uondRdS
drqearddy

PRY
saaeys Jo o,

JJBOSSY /
Axeipisqng/3uipjoy

NID/NID

Auedwo)) Y} JO SSAIPPY pue JWeN

ON'S

satuedwio)) 9)eId0sSY pue Areipisqns ‘Suip[oy Jo sig[nd

naed 1

%001

S8 SOJIAIRS Q1B YIBOH

|

Auedwod JJ1AI3S/)INpoI g $321AJ3s / syponpoad

d3Y) JO JdA0WaN) [BJ0) 0} 9, | dY) Jo apo) DIN | urewr Jo wondusyq pue dweN

‘oN
'S

(paress oq [reys Auedwoo

3} JO JSAOUIN] [EJO} SY} JO IOW IO %] SUNNGLHUOD SIIATIL SSAUISN] 3y} [[V) ANVAINOD AHL 40 SHLLIALLOV SSANISNE TVAIONIId

STVLIdSOH

SWIA M\

11



- R R - - - R - Joylo Auy (3
- - R - - - - - 14/ syueg (3
- - - - - - - - d10) satpog (p
- - - - - - - - (shaop Aeis (0
- - - - - - - - 140D [eNU) (q

T 6StY 9L0°C1°TEE 9LO'CITES | 109F | 1L8VLTHE |- 1L8°VL TV E ANH /IEnpiatpul (&
uerpuy (1)
dnoasy 13j0woag
» Jowold vV

saaeys sateysS

awakoy | 110U eyoL

Suump | 3% gL [ed1sAyq yeunq Jo <, €101 [ed1sAyq yewd(q

Jguey) sIapjoydaeys
% 1834 3} JO pud Y} Je P[AY SAIeYS JO "ON Je34 9Y) Jo SuruuIgdq Y} J& p[oY sd.Ieys Jo ‘oN | Jo £1083)1e)

SuipjoH areyg asim-£103018) v

(Xymbyq 1er0, Jo a3ejudduad se dnyeaaq [eyde) areys £ynby) NYALLVA ONIATOH TUVHS “Al

"BIPU] ‘Ysapeld BIYpPUY TOOSIS — [oouIny ‘peoy
weandereyor ‘gz291(/1€6 ON S 8T 29 LT ON 10[d
(L8)T 5 Arerpisqng | 698€800.1dZ10TdVO0I1$8N PJIWI] 2JBAL [oouINy| [e)IdSOH SIATY 6

"BIPU] “ysapeld

eIYPUY ‘$00S 1S — Indejueuy oIJO 1YSIES 0)
ansoddQ uoisudxg Auojo)) Jedeuls ‘gHc-1:0N'q
‘payury

(L8)T 08 Arepisqng | #0060101d8102dV00158N SJBALI SAURIDS [EJIPIIA JO SINHUISU BISSARS 8
"BIPU] “Ysdpeid BIYPUY ‘T[00ES — weujedeysesip
150d AdHE ‘re3eue[oays ‘z0-11-7€'ON'd
pajwury

(L8)T IS Arerpisqng | ¢€18010.1d8102dV0I1$8N ajealid sa0ud10g [BIIPIIA JO INIISUT IYSLUOI] L

STVLIdSOH

SWIA M\




ol

Ye|
[ sy o1 dn jeudes
areys [eurwou
3uiploy s19p[oyaIeys
[enpIAIpu] a

(19°0)

8¥°Cl

8¥9°L6°T6

€T’

91¥'98°+8

60°¢l

TV ES'L6

9L6°LO°T1

9y S 98

srenpiaipuy (q

seas1oAQ (11

10

v81°70°1

v81¥0°1

10

r81I¥0°1

r81I10°l

uerpuj (1

-d10) saipog (e

suopmsuj-uoy 7

00°C

19°ty

906°6E°LI‘E

906°6E°L1°E

19°0v

STT0S20°C

STT‘0S20°E

-:(1(Q) 1e103-qng

(K310ads) s1oyiQ (1

00C

19°Cy

906°6E°L1°C

906°6£°L1°€

19°0¥

ST1°0S°T0°€

STT°0S°T0°E

spun [ende)
amua A uSieio (Y

SIId (8

saruedwo)
QoueInsu| (3

spun,
fendey omuop (9

(sypaon s (p

1400 Tenud) (9

14/ syueq (q

spun,] [emnj (e

suonmusu[ “|

guipjoyaaeys
aqng q

@@
SIYLIdSOH

SWIA

(0244

__
._ ._,...,
4 ] \

9L0°€I‘TEE

9LO'EITEE

10°9%

IL8VLTH E

IL8PLTH'E

(V) 1910014 Jo
Suipjoyaaeys [ejog,




Ll

001

TSS68Pr L

TETII'S

0TE'SL EL

001

TSS'68Pr L

091°TI°TI

TOE'LLTE L

O+4+V)
€10, puerd

SUAV ¥ s4dd
10§ ueIpojsn)

Aq ppYy saieys D

w1

Iv'ss

9LF9LTTY

TETII'S

PrTs9v0y

66°€S

189F1°20

091°TI°T1

12S°20°06°€

(@ +((a@=(a)
Suipjoyoueys
orqng el

(85°0)

08°CI

0LS'9€°S6

ETII'S

8€E°ST'LY

8€°€l

99<+9°66

091°TI°T1

90v°TS'LS

-:(7)(9) 1®10)-qng

d
A - seipog uSiaio]

sisnay

sIaquiajy Surres|)

S[euoneN us1aI10]

salpoyg
ae10dio) seISIAQ

SUeIpu]
uepISay UuoN

¥0°0

810

8ELYE]

8ELYE'

v1°0

096°90°1

096°90°1

dNH -
(K31ads) s1ay10

Ue[ [ s
Jo ssaoxa ur [endeo

areys [eurwou
3urpjoy s1opjoyaeys
[enpIAIpu| (1

STVLIdSOH

SWIA N\




% LSVC ¥91°v0°€8’l - - Ted4 2y} Jo pud Ay} Iy
% LSVC ¥91°v0°€8’l % LSVT v91v0°€8’l JTeah 2y} Jo FuiuuIseq Ay Iy
INANITTOd OV dVISVHA
Auedwod KAuedwod
3y} Jo saaeys 3y} Jo saaeys
18103 Jo ¢/, S3JBYs JOo 'ON 18103 JO ¢/, S3IBYS JO ON
184 9y} Sulanp FCEY L]
Surpjoyaaeys Jdaewin)) | Jo SuluuI3dq Y} je Fuipjoyd.eys stg[nonieg NS
— (33ueyd ou s1 319y} J1 ‘AJ193ds 3sed|d) Suipjoyd.aeys Ss1930woad uidsuey) (O
@) % 06°1T Y% 6S°F¥ 9LOEITEE | % 6S°EL % 109y | IL8‘PLTY'E [e10],
- - % 00°0 7SSl - % 00°0 7SSl IABEY EJBoMS 0l
- - % 10°0 8C1°8 - % 10°0 8TI'g tuaujjod yIMpy 6
- - % 68'C 9€6°61°1¢C % ¥8'C % 68°C 9€6°61°1¢C aurfjog tseAley ‘8
- - % 09°¢ TLT'€8°9T - % 09°¢ TLTE8°9C eAiemysty [uaujjog L
Ly'1) - % S0°0 98€ V¢ % LI'L % CS'1 98EVE L1 1uaulfjog eyjelng 9
P11 1Ad s[endsoq
850 - % C0'L 879°8T°CS - % ¥¥'9 T€9°00°8¥ [ELIOWSJA YeleuBlEy Iusuljjog S
- - % 90°0 6759y - % 90°0 6VS 9y 1uaulfjog Aeuryqy 14
(€5°0) - % S1°9 LIS T8 Sy % £€°0 % 899 80€°TL 6 tuauljjod yereuasg €
- - % €20 6 EL’] % 200 % €20 rr6 EL'] tuaulfjod Yereuysty [4
- % 06'1C % LSVC Y9Iv0'E8’l | % €T'6 % LSYT | ¥91v0°€8’1 tuauljjod oey Ieyseyq 1d !
saJeys saaeys | Auedwod
1eak oy [®10) 0) Pp Auedwod 12101 0} |3y jo
Suunp | 21qunoud Wy PaIdquINdUd saaeys
“gm |/ PIBpald | Jo sdaeys sareys | / padpald 1810}
ployoaeys | SEUS J0% | 1810} Jo % | Jo oN | sareys  Jov, [Jo 9, saaEYS JO “ON SWEN SAIPIOURIEUS
ur oN
agdueyd o, ABIA 3Y) JO puUd 3Y) J& SUIP[OYIRYS 184 9Y) Jo uIuuIgIq Y} Je SuIpjoyd.1eys ‘IS

s.a19j0woa 4 jJo suipjoya.aeys (g
SIYLIdSOH

SWIA M\




6l

% 00°0 Tss'l 183K o) JO pus Ayl 1y

% 00°0 Tss'l % 00°0 7SSl 183k oy} Jo Suruuizaq ay) 1y
IAVVY VLVIMS

% 00°0 8CI1°8 183k o) JO pus oyl 1y

% 10°0 8CI°8 % 10°0 8CI1°8 Ieak ay) Jo Suruuisaq ay) 1y
INANITT109 MIMAV

% 68'C 9€6°67°1¢ - - 183k 3y} JO pus oy 1y

% 68°'C €661 1T % 68°'C 9¢6°6Y°1C 183K 2y Jo Suruuidaq Ay 1y
INANITTIOL RISVACVY

% 09°€ TLT'E8°9T - - Teak oy} JO pud oyl 1y

% SL'€ TLT'E8°9T % SL'E TLTE8°9T JB3A 3y} JO uruuIdaq ay) 1y
VAAVMHSIV ININITTOq

I8k o JO pud Ay} 1y

% S0°0 98¢ V¢ (2% 08°0) 000°00°9 610C°S0°LT U0 9[eS

% $8°0 98€¥€°9 (% L9°0) 000°00°S 6102°SO'0] Uo d[es

% CS'1 98€VE 11 % TS'1 98€ Ve 183k sy} jo Suruuidaq ayy 1y
INANITTO9 VHLVIAS

% T0°L 879°8C°CS 183k o) JO pus oyl 1y

% T0'L 879°8T°CS % 70°0 $T0°6C 610Z°01°81 uo a1mboy

% 869 €09°66°1S % S0°0 099°9¢ 610Z°60°90 uo imboy

% €69 €76°C9°1S % #0°0 786°6C 6107°S0"€0 uo a1mboy

% 689 6S6°TE 1S % S0 LTETE'E 610Z'+0°9 uo a1mboy

% 79 T€9°00°8¥ % 779 T€9°00°8¥ 183k oy Jo Suruuigaq dy 1y
dLT .LAd STVLIdSOH TVIHOIWAIN HVIVNVIAVY INANIT109

% 90°0 6¥S9 - - 183k 2y Jo pus oyl 1y

% 90°0 6VS 9y % 90°0 6VS9y 1834 oy} Jo Suruuigaq dy) 1y
INANITT109 AVNIHAV

% S1°9 LIS T8°SY 183k o) JO pus Ayl 1y

% S1°9 L1ST8°SH % €570 16L°68°C 610C°S0°01 Uo 9[eS

% 89°9 80€°CL 6V % 89°9 80€°TL 61 183K 2y Jo Suruuisaq Ay 1y
INANITTO] HVIVNAAS

% €270 Pr6°EL 1 - - 183k o) JO pus oyl 1y

% €20 Tr6'EL’] % €20 Pr6°EL’] Ieak dy) Jo SumuIsaq ay) 1y
INANITT10O9 HVIVNHSTI

STV¥LIdS50OH

SWIN I\




% L0 000°15°¢ % 00°0 86L°C 6107'80° €T U0 dseyoing

% L0 T0TLY'E % 60°0 000°99 6107°80°60 UO dseyoing

% 8€°0 20T 18°C % 8€°0 Z0Z°18°C 1824 3y} JO FuIUUISq Y} IV
INANIDOD AVSVid WVIV.LIS

% 0S°0 16V°69°C 1894 3U) JO pud Y} IV

% 0S°0 161°69°¢ % 0S°0 16°69°¢ 1294 9y} JO FuIUUISq Y} }Y
THVIDINVd dVINN SVNVIA

% 150 887°¢8°¢C - - 1ed4 2y} JO pud Y} IV

% 1S°0 887°¢8°¢C % 150 887°€8°¢C 1894 3y} JO FuIUUISq Y} IV
ALLASRIVTTId VINVY NHOVY

% 60°1 GS8°01°8 1894 9U) JO PUd Y} 1Y

% 60'1 GS8°01°8 % 60°1 SS8°01°8 1ed£ Ay} JO SuruuIsdq Yy 1y
AVMSIAGUVS HYIIVHVS

% Tl 095°09°01 - - 1294 2Y) JO PUd Y} 1Y

% 'l 095°09°01 % 'l 095°09°01 1ed4 9y} Jo FuruuIsaq Ay Iy
I'TVAOM VI VNHSIRID VLVINIA

% €S°1 000°9€° 1 1 - - 1894 3y} JO pud Y} IV

% €S°1 000°9€°T 1 % €S°1 000°9€°T 1 1294 9y} JO FuIUUISq Y} }Y
ANVHOIWTId AVINQ VAANArvYa

% 19T 906°6£°L1°E - - 1ed4 2y} JO pud Y} I

% 19T 906°6E°L1°€ % 18°0 000°00°9 6107°S0°L1 Uo dseyoing

% 08It 906°6E° 11°€ %611 16L°68°8 6102°50°01 uo aseyoing

% 19°0b SI1°0ST0°€ % 19°0t SI1°0S20°C 1824 3y} JO FuIUUISq Y} IV
ALTALd ‘H TAOdVONIS DILLNVILV TVIINID

Auedurod Auedurod
Y} Jo saaeys dY) Jo sdaeys
€30} JO °/, SAIBYS JO "ON 18303} JO 9, SAJeYS JO "ON
ABIX Y} 183K Y} Jo

gurinp Suipjoyd.aeys sAne[nwIn) Suruuigaq ay) je surpjoydaeys saapjoyaaeys o] doJ, ay3 jo yoey oy NS

(SYAV pue sYqo JO SIIP[OH PUE SI3)OWOLJ ‘SI0III([ UBY) JY)Q)
:sI9pjoydaeys udy doy jo uide surpjoyadaeys (q

SIVvLild

SWIN A

I




L

% 200°0 000°T 183k 3y Jo pus oyl 1y
% 100°0 000°1 % 1000 000°1 610T°80°91 U0 aseyaInd
% 100°0 000°1 % 100°0 000°1 1824 9y} JO FuIUUISq Y JY
VHINVIN IVINVHS VIAN
% 800°0 00S°9 1eaK oY) Jo pud Ay} 1y
% 800°0 0059 % 800°0 0059 1ea4 3y} Jo Juruursaq Ay 3y
IIVAHSAHVIA SVIA
% 90°0 6759 - - 1eak ay) Jo pud Ay} 1y
% 90°0 6759 % 90°0 6759y 1824 dY) JO FuIUUISAq Y }Y
INANITTO4d AVNIHAV
% LS'VT POIv0°€8’1 - - 1eaK o) Jo pud Ay} 1y
% LS'¥T PO1v0°€8’l % LS'VT PO1v0°€8°1 1ea4 2y} Jo Suruurdaq Ay 3y
OVI IWVIISVHA d
Kuedwod Kuedwod
3y} Jo sdaeys 3y} Jo saaeys
1810} Jo 9/, saaeys Jo ‘'oN 810} jo o, SaJeys Jo ‘ON
FCEYELTE 183831 Jo [PuuosIdJ
surnp gurpjoyaaeys dAnenwWN)) SuIuuIgaq Y} J€ SuIp[oydaeyS | [BLIDGBURIA] AdY YOBY puB SI0)IIL[ Yovd Jo Juipjoyaieys NS

[UU0SId] [BLIdSRURIA] A PUE S1031I(] Jo Suipjoya.ieys (7

% ST0 70S°68°1 183K 2y} JO pud Ayl 1Y

% ST0 705 68°1 % ST0 705 68°1 Tea4 9y3 Jo Suruuigaq dy) 1y
INANVIVIAIA VIAAVd

% LT0 887861 183k oY) JO pua oyl 1y

% LT0 887861 % LT0 881°861 163k oy} Jo Suruuigaq dy) 1y
Arvid VvVilvid S N

% L0 9€L°0S°¢ 183K ay) Jo pus a1 1y

% L¥"0 9€L°0S°€E % L1'0 9€L°0S°€E 1eak oy jo Suruuizaq ay) 1y
LOYHSAS

% 0S°0 0£€°69°¢ 183k oY) JO pus oyl 1y

% 05°0 0£€°69°€ % €0°0 0€€81 610C°CI 1€ Uo aseyding

STVLIdSOH

SWIN I\




cc

TI°LTLLSTTIST

€0°STS'SPI'PE

80°T0T°Tr1°8T8‘l

(In+1141) B0 .

0029766

00'¥29v66

anp jou Jnq panadIe saad)uy (i

pred jou ynq anp ysasdup (1

11°€01°€6T°198°1

€0°STS SY1vE

80'8LS" LYI°LT8']

yunowry [edurg (1

1234 [eIduRUL) AY) JO PUI JY) }€ SSAUPIqapu]

8S°69L°LS8°01 (97°LS9°89L°6) ¥8'97+°979°0T dduey) PN
1L 1€L°S08°L9E L8YOE6LILI ¥8°974979°0S€ uonINpy
€1°796°LY6°9S € €1°296°LY6°9T 00°000°000°0€€ uonIppy »

1234 [eDURUL 3y} SULINp SSAUPI)qIPU] Ul dguey))

6996 9F1°€L8°1 LL'L9S'ILEYT T6'8T9°89L°8%8'1 (n+1141) eyo L
00'06£°162°1 00'06€°162°1 anp jou Jnq panadde 3sadpuy (1

- - pred jou ynq anp )sasdpuf (11
69901 4S8 1L8°1 LL'L9S'ILE YT TO'SETLLY LYS' junowry [eduig (1

1834 [erdueul) 3y) Jo Juruurdaq Ay) Je ssaupajqapuy

ssaupajqapuj
1810 L

sypsodaq

SUBOT PaInddsun)

syisodap Suipnpoxd
SUBOT PO.INIIS

‘JuawAed J0j anp j0uU INq panidde/3ulpuelsino isasoiul Juipnoul Auedwo)) ay} Jo ssaupaiqapul- SSANAALIAANI ‘A

STVLIdSOH .

SWIA N\




N - - 19V 3y} 4ad se Sui)

09°LT 09°€ 0042 (V) 1®roL

AJ19ads asead ‘saay10 S

*=+AJ19ads ‘sadyjo -
jjgoud jo o/, se -

UOISSIwo)) %

Aynbjy jeamg 3

uondQ d0)§ C
1961

0V Xe) -owodu] (§)L] UoI)dIS Jdpun A1efes Jo ndif ul syyoad (9)

1961 19V Xej-owodu] (7)L] s/n sayisinbaad jo anjeA (q)

1961 9V Xe)-dwodug

09°LC 09°€ 00'%C 3y} Jo (1)L uonaas ur paurejuod suoisiaoad 1ad se Liejeg (v)
KJ1ejes ssoan) 1
eppuy “q s oey Jeyseyq 'q 1d
junowry [e)0], JSeurAl /ALA/AIA JO dweN uoneIUNWIAY JO sienonied ‘NS
SUOIIAl uf

:103eUBIA] J0/pUR SI010II(] SWI-A[OYAL ‘1030311 SuiSeury 0} UonRIUNWY °V

TANNOSHHAd TVRIAOVNVIA AT ANV SHOLOHYIA 40 NOLLVYINNNHY ‘TA

STVLIdSOH

SWIN I\




vc

19V 3y} 43d se SuI[I)) [[BI1AQ

uoneIRUNWAY
[eLIdSRURIA] [B1O],

44!

¥9°0

8¢°0

(T+D=(9) 1810 L

(D180

A3199ds asedrd ‘som1O

UOISSIWWO))

S3UI}PIW I9)IIWWO0I PALOQ SUIPUI)IE A0 I

SI0)J11(] FAIINIIXF-UON Y10

44!

¥9°0

850

(1) 1810

A3193ds aseard ‘saoynQ

UOISSIWWOo))

(14!

¥9°0

850

S3UI}IW II)IIWWO0I PALOQ SUIPUIIIE A0 ]

$10)93.1(J Judpudadapuy

oey
eaemsafey

T

peseadq
1y)oAp SIN

junowy [B)o]

SJ103931(] JO dweN

UOIEIUNWIY JO SIB[NIILIE]

‘NS

SUOIIAL uf

STVLIdSOH

SWIN I\

$10)99.1(] J9Y)0 0) uonEIUNWIY ‘g




N - - - - Surpunodwo)
Z - - - - judwysiung
R - N - - Kyeudd
ANVJINOD 'V
pasoduur
(sirerq (L4NOD | $393 Surpunodwo)
A1)  Aue  J1 | /LIDN /aA) pudwysiung | uondudsdq | PV sotuedwo)
‘9peuw [gaddy LAuoyny | / A)jeudq jo spepq Jjoug | 9y Jo uonddg adL 1,
:SUAYO JO Suipunodwo)) udwysiung / sanjeudd ‘TIA

I'L1 86°1 LE'L SL'L [e)0],
- - - - £3199ds asedrd ‘s1oy3Q S

- - - - *=*KJ193ds ‘s19y30

- - - - jjoud jo o/, se -
- - - - UOISSIWWO)) ¥
- - - - Aynbyq yeomg €
- - - - uondQ ¥203§ (4

1961 PV

- - - - | xey-owodu] (¢)L] uondIS JIpun Ale[es jo ndif ur syyoad (9)

- - - - 1961 )9V Xep-owodu] (7)L] s/n sdysinbaad jo anjeA (q)

1961 PV Xe)-dwodu|

I'L1 86'1 LEL GLL | a3 Jo (T)L1 uondds ul pautejuod suoisiroad uad se Liejeg ()
- A1epes ssoan) I

SO odD
BYJUBA uemygsoyejy | QYD - luduljjog
[BJOL | IBjueyg Bu) | SBYIA A Aeuryqy

[PUUOSIdJ [BLIdGRUR]A] A3 uoneIUNUIY Jo sagmdnied | NS

SUOIIIA uf
ALA\ /93 UBA/IAI UBY) J9Y)0 [PUUOSII] [BIIdSBUR]A] A 0) UOnRIUNWY °D

STVLIdSOH

SWIA M\




9¢

(08¥S7000 "ON NIQ) (S8680000°°N NI1)
J03911(] SWI-I[OYA\ 10392.1(] SuideuBAl
eypuy “q SN oey Jeyseyq d 1d

-/PS -/PS

PINWIT SIIUIIIG [EIIPIIA JO IMISUT BUYSLIY
JO $1033311(] JO paeog dY} JO J[eYdq UOo pue a0y

020T°L0'1T e
peqelapAH :93eld

Suripunodwo)

juduIySsIun g

Kyeuag

LTAVAHA NI SHIDIA40 HAHLO D

Surpunodwo)

juduIySsIun g

Ayeudd

SYOLOWIIA |

STVLIdSOH

SWIN I\




Part “A”: Subsidiaries

ANNEXURE - 11
Form No. AOC -1
(Pursuant to the first provision to sub-section 3 of Section 129, read with Rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014); Salient Features of Financial Statements of Subsidiary/associate
companies/joint ventures as per Companies Act, 2013

Amount in Rs million.

Arunodaya | KIMS Iconkrishi | Saveera KIMS
Hospitals Hospital Institute of | Institute Hospital
| Name of Subsidiary Private Enterprises | Medical of Medical | Kurnool
) Limited Private Sciences Sciences Private
Limited Private Private Limited
Limited Limited
Reporting period for the | Not Not Not Not
subsidiary concerned, if | applicable applicable applicable | applicable
2. different from the holding
company’s reporting
period
Reporting currency and | Not Not Not Not
Exchange rate as on the | applicable applicable applicable | applicable
3. last date of the relevant
Financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries
4. Share Capital 20.27 245.45 100.10 310.00 60.00
5. Other Equity 208.52 231.25 (148.85) (45.33 (175.08)
6. Total Assets 307.46 1308.19 355.27 1011.72 527.03
7. Total Liabilities 79.68 831.49 384.02 747.07 642.12
8. Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9. Turnover 393.46 1422.43 559.43 585.10 409.82
10 Profit/(Loss) Before 50.74 120.59 (55.52) (58.99) (93.34)
" | Taxation
1 Provision for Tax 11.32 6.02 27.10 (27.95) (0.07)
" | Expenses
12. | Profit after Taxation 39.42 114.57 (81.48) (31.04) (93.27)
13. | Proposed Dividend 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14. | % of Shareholding 57.83% 75.26% 51.00% 80.00% 55.00%

Additional Information:

1.KIMS Hospitals Pvt. Ltd.

liquidated or sold during the year.

1. | Names of subsidiaries which are yet to | 2.KIMS Swastha Pvt. Ltd
commence operations 3. KIMS Cuddles Pvt. Ltd.
4. KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Pvt. Ltd.
) Names of subsidiaries which have been | NIL

Part “B”: Associates/Joint Ventures - Nil

Name of Associates

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of Holding %

Description of how there is significant influence

A U Pl Rl i

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

27



KIMS

HOSPITALS

®

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited balance sheet

Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Additional Information:

1

Names of associates or joint ventures which are
yet to commence operations

Nil

2

Names of associates or joint ventures which
have been liquidated or sold during the year

Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Place:Hyderabad Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao Ms. D. Anitha
Date:21.07.2020 Managing Director Whole-time Director
(DIN No.00008985 ) (DIN No. 00025480)
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Annexure — I11

FORM NO. AOC -2

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

KIMS

HOSPITALS

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.- NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

S.No Related Parties Nature of Transaction Amount in Rs.
Millions
1 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao Office or Place of Profit In 18.00
2 Dr. Sweata Raavi The Company 2.16
3 Vikas Maheswari 7.37
4 Uma Shankar Mantha 1.98
5 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao Leasing of property of any 0.10
kind;
6 KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Private 5.08
Limited. Sale, Purchase or supply of
7 Arunodaya Hospitals Pvt Ltd any goods or material 0.17
8 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences 0.59
Private Limited
9 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical 0.91
Sciences private Limited
10. KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private 0.69
Limited
11. KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Private | Availing or Rendering of 11.25
Limited. any services
12. Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences 1.30
Private Limited
13. Iconkrishi Institute of Medical 0.66
Sciences private Limited
14. KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private 1.74
Limited
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ANNEXURE -1V
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of,

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558
D.No.1-8-31/1,Minister's Road,

Secunderabad — 500003, Telangana

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
(hereinafter called the ‘Company’) for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2020 (the ‘Audit
Period”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit and based on
the Management representations and undertakings, We hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the Audit year ended on 31¥ March, 2020, according to the provisions
of:

@) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under read with
the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017,

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iii)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India related to Board Meetings and General Meetings.

During the audit period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, the
Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company;

(a) The Indian Medical Council Act, 1956
(b) Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act, 2010
(c) Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940
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(d) Biomedical Waste Management Handling Rules, 2016
(e) The Medical Termination Of Pregnancy Act, 1971

(f) Pre-natal Diagnostic Techniques Act, 1994

(g) Transplantation of Human Organ Act, 1994

(h) The Pharmacy Act, 1961

(i) Atomic Energy Act, 1962

(j) Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006

(k) Indian Boilers Act, 1923

We have relied on the representations made by the Company, its officers and reports of other
professionals engaged by the company for compliances under other acts, laws and regulations
applicable to the Company as mentioned above.

We further report that:

a. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

b.  Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and few meeting at short notice
complying the Secretarial Standard (SS-1) and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

¢.  Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company and its committees thereof
were carried through on the basis of majority. There were no dissenting views by any members
of the Board of Directors during the audit period.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct
and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts have been verified
on limited review basis in this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial
audit and other designated professionals.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable Medical laws which are
applicable specifically to the hospital industry and maintenance its records have been verified on
limited review basis in this audit since the same have been subject to review by other designated
professionals engaged by the Company.

We further report that during the audit period there were following specific events/actions having a
major bearing on company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc.,

» General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd (“Investor”) has acquired 14,89,791 equity shares
constitutes 2% of the total paid up share capital of the Company from Mr. Seenaiah Bollineni
and Mrs Sujatha Bollineni (“Promoters”) by executing Share Purchase Agreement between
Company, General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd (“Investor”), Mr. Seenaiah Bollineni and
Mrs Sujatha Bollineni (“Promoters™) on 06th May, 2019.
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» Dr. Abhinay Bollineni has been appointed as Chief Executive Office of the Company vide
Board of Directors Meeting dated 03 July, 2019.

» Dr. Bhaskar Rao Managing Director & CEO has been re-designated as Managing Director
vide Board of Directors Meeting held on 03™ July, 2019.

For IKR & Associates
Company Secretaries
[Firm Regn. No. S2016TL372100]

Sd/-
Krishna Rao Inturi
Proprietor
ACS No.23071
COP No.10486
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21.07.2020

32



To,

KIMS

HOSPITALS

The Members of,

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558
D.No.1-8-31/1,Minister's Road,

Secunderabad — 500003, Telangana

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter and further that:

The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations, standards applicable to Krishna
Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (the ‘Company’) is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our examination was limited to the verification of records and
procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

Maintenance of secretarial and other records of applicable laws is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to issue Secretarial Audit Report, based
on the audit of the relevant records maintained and furnished to us by the Company, along
with explanations where so required.

We have followed the Audit Practices and Processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of contents of Secretarial Records and the verification was
done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts as reflected in secretarial and other
records produced to us. We believe that the processes and practices we followed, provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

We have not verified correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and major events during the audit period.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management of the Company has conducted
affairs of the Company.

For IKR & Associates
Company Secretaries
[Firm Regn. No. S2016TL372100]

Sd/-

Krishna Rao Inturi

Proprietor

ACS No.23071, COP No.10486

Place: Hyderabad
Date:21.07.2020
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ANNEXURE -V
Report on CSR Activities
(1) (a) A Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy: KIMS CSR policy intends to embrace
responsibility for the company’s action and encourage a positive impact through its activities
on education, clean environmental living, Genetic Research and new drug discovery initiatives,
in primary and secondary health-care.

(b) Overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken: KIMS contributes its
designated CSR funds primarily to the medical research and other government proposed
programs such as Swach Bharath programs etc.,

(2) As on the date of this report, the composition of the CSR Committee is as follows:

Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao
Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao
Dr. Abhinay Bollineni

(3) Average net profits of the Company for the last three financial years: Rs. 73,61,30,083

(4) Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) is
Rs. 1,47,22,602

(5) Details of CSR Spent during the year:

1) (2) 3) “) (%) (0) @) )
SI. No | CSR Sector in | Projects or | Amount Amount spent | Cumulative | Amount spent:
Project which the | Programs outlay on the projects | expenditure | Direct or through
Or project is (1) Local area | (budget) | or programs upto the | implementing
Activity covered or other project or | Sub-heads: reporting agency *
Identified 2) Specify the | programs period
state  and | wise 1. Direct
district expenditure
where on projects
projects or or
programs programs
was
undertaken 2. Overheads
1 Literacy and | Promotion | Telangana - An amount of | 5,00,000 Spent through
Quality of Rs. 5,00,000 Implementing agency
Education Education was given to i. e Teach for
Teach for Change Trust. an
Change Trust. Registered Trust.
2 Medical Promoting | Telangana - An amount of | 1,46,40,000 | Spent through
Research Preventive Rs. 1,46,40,000 implementing agency
Healthcare was given to i. e KIMS
KIMS Foundation and
Foundation and Research Center a
Research registered Trust
Centre, under the Indian
registered  trust Trust Act 1882.
for the purpose
of medical
research.
Total 1,51,40,000
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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Krishna Institute of
Medical Sciences Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance sheet as at 31
March 2020, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Other matter

The standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019,
included in these standalone Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 03 July 2019.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss including the
statement of other comprehensive income, the standalone statement of cash flows and
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2020 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.25 to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements;

ii. =~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Sd/-

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 20102328 AAAACV7030
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020
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Annexure 1, referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date
Re: Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (the ‘Company’)

O]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

()

(b)

(©

()

(b)

(©

()

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year
but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title
deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in
the name of the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification.

There was no inventory lying with third parties.

The Company has granted loans to four subsidiaries covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such
loans are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

The Company has granted loans to four subsidiaries covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated for the loans granted and the
repayment/receipts are regular.

There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue
for more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to
directors including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and
advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities given have been
complied with by the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the medical and healthcare
services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination
of the same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and
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(viii)

(i)

(®)

(c)

service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed dues in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service
tax, cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of value added tax and
Luxury Tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of | Nature | Amount Amount Period to | Forum where
the statute | of the | demanded paid under | which the | the dispute is
dues (Rs) protest amount pending
(Rs) relates
The Andhra | Luxury 16,140,468 7,993,480 | 2004-07 Hon'ble High
Pradesh tax | tax* Court of
act, 1987 Judicature at

Hyderabad for the
State of Andhra

Pradesh
The Andhra | Luxury 52,022,873 | 29,361,961 | 2007-11 Sales Tax
Pradesh tax | tax* Appellate
act, 1987 Tribunal,
Hyderabad
The Andhra | Penalty 14,101,865 2,115,280 | 2008-09 Sales Tax
Pradesh tax | on Appellate
act, 1987 Luxury Tribunal,
tax* Hyderabad
AP VAT | Value 1,758,116 1,098,823 | November | Appellate Deputy
Act, 2005 Added 2009  to | Commissioner,
Tax February | Hyderabad

2013

* Interest will be levied as applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a
financial institution, bank or government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt
instruments) and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.
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)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the standalone Ind AS financial statements and according to the
information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the
Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause (xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year
under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable
to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Sd/-

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 20102328 AAAACV7030
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020
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Annexure 2 to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Krishna Institute of Medical
Sciences Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind
AS financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Sd/-

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 20102328 AAAACV7030
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Financial assets

(1) Investments

(i) Loans

(iii) Other financial assets
Non-current tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents
(ii1) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(i1) Lease liabilities

(iii) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i1) Current lease liabilities
(ii1) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net)
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

As at

As at

Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
2.1(a) 5,385.79 5,640.01
2.1(a) 2233 232
2.1(b) 26.89 27.93
2.1(b) 179.45 -
22 1,779.59 796.21
23 (a) 20330 21.45
2.4 (a) 0.11 732
29 207.53 20022
25 77.07 278.28
7,882.06 6,973.74
26 217.07 189.67
27 991,51 1,000.30
2.8 (a) 344.67 62.59
2.8(b) 50.13 2111
23(b) 1524 215.46
2.4 (b) 46,39 87.56
2.10 27.36 17.66
1,692.37 1,594.35
9,574.43 8,568.09
2.11 (a) 744.90 744.90
2.1 (b) 5,496.40 429438
6,241.30 5,039.28
212 1,471.23 1,523.72
226 25.62 -
2.13 (a) 0.09 0.09
2.14 122.02 91.63
2.18 (a) 30.27 25.87
236 30439 42091
1,953.62 2,062.22
215 20.81 85.39
226 852 -
2.16 3.86 -
2.16 775.91 736.71
213 (b) 417.68 38735
217 54.19 51.03
2.18 (b) 98.54 110.84
- 95.27
1,379.51 1,466.59
9,574.43 8,568.09
13

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

Sd/-
per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Managing Director
DIN: 00008985

Sd/-
Vikas Maheshwari

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Sd/-
Dr. B Abhinay
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01681273

Sd/-
Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary
Membership no:A21035
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Standalone statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue
Revenue from operations 2.19 7,899.70 7,069.13
Other income 2.20 70.90 64.73
Total Revenue 7,970.60 7,133.86
Expenses
Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed 221 1,798.50 1,666.36
Employee benefits expense 222 1,369.70 1,269.10
Finance cost 223 205.69 333.79
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.1 426.62 409.70
Other expenses 2.24 2,705.04 3,589.14
Total expenses 6,505.55 7,268.09
Profit / (loss) before tax 1,465.05 (134.23)
Tax expense
- Current tax 2.36 387.41 345.55
- Deferred tax credit/(expenses) 2.36 (113.49) (43.23)
- Tax pertaining to earlier years 2.36 (19.93) -
Total tax expense 253.99 302.32
Profit/(Loss) for the year (A) 1,211.06 (436.55)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (12.08) (19.85)
- Income-tax relating to these items 3.04 6.94
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (B) (9.04) (12.91)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (A+B) 1,202.02 (449.46)
Earnings per share (face value of share Rs. 10 each) 2.29
- Basic 16.26 (6.31)
- Diluted 16.13 (6.31)
Significant accounting policies 1.3

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report attached of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

Sd/-
per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Managing Director
DIN: 00008985

Sd/-
Vikas Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Sd/-
Dr. B Abhinay
Managing Director
DIN: 01681273

Sd/-
Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary
Membership no: A21035
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Standalone statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

L. Cash flows from operating activities:

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Profit / (loss) before tax 1,465.05 (134.23)
Adjustments for operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 426.62 409.70
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 4.06 1.52
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 27.63 155.84
Trade receivables written off 0.64 41.56
Guarantee commission income (4.06) (2.91)
Sub lease income (1.46) (1.95)
Interest income (33.08) (25.27)
Liabilities no longer required written back (3.16) (16.62)
Interest on income tax refund (2.06) -
Changes in fair value of financial instrument - 871.27
Finance cost 205.69 333.79
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 2,085.87 1,632.70
Adjustments for:
Increase in trade receivables (19.49) (237.60)
Increase in inventories (27.40) (26.84)
Decrease/ (Increase) in loans and other assets 3130 (18.19)
Increase/ (decrease) in liabilities and provisions 5.65 (12.30)
Cash generated from operations 2,075.93 1,337.77
Income taxes paid, net (470.05) (250.29)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,605.88 1,087.48
II. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (212.15) (460.99)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2.64 2.06
Investment in subsidiaries (913.67) (459.98)
Loans given to subsidiaries (209.05) (237.97)
Receipt of loans given to subsidiaries 229.74 166.50
Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 146.45 254
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) (169.21) (17.84)
Sub lease income received 1.46 1.95
Interest received 43.50 15.46
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,080.30) (988.27)
III. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (286.80) (1,250.32)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 330.00 642.93
Repayment of short-term borrowings (net) (64.58) (180.32)
Payment of lease obligations (28.05) (10.52)
Proceeds from issue of shares - 880.00
Proceeds from issue of share warrants - 3.10
Interest paid (194.07) (206.51)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (C) (243.50) (121.64)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 282.08 (22.43)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 62.59 85.02
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 344.67 62.59
Note:
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 22.43 8.83
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 24224 53.76
- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 80.00 -
Total 344.67 62.59
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report attached of even date
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558
Sdl- Sd/- Sd/-
per Navneet Rai Kabra Dr. B Bhaskara Rao Dr. B Abhinay
Partner Managing Director Managing Director
Membership no.: 102328 DIN:00008985 DIN: 01681273
Sd/- Sd/-
Vikas Maheshwari Uma Shankar Mantha

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Company Secretary
Membership no: A21035
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Equity Other equity Total of other
share capital Reserve and surplus Share equity
Securities | Adjustment Retained warrants
premium reserve earnings
account
Balance as at 01 April 2019 744.90 7,525.80 57.64 (3,292.16) 3.10 4,294.38
Profit for the year - - - 1,211.06 - 1,211.06
Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - - (9.04) - (9.04)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 744.90 7,525.80 57.64 (2,090.14) 3.10 5,496.40
Particulars Equity Other equity Total of other
share capital Reserve and surplus Share equity

Securities | Adjustment Retained Warrants

premium reserve earnings
Balance as at 01 April 2018 501.50 29298 57.64 (2,842.70) - (2,492.08)
Loss for the year - - - (436.55) - (436.55)
Issue of shares 28.65 851.35 - - - 851.35
Issue of share warrants - - - - 3.10 3.10
Conversion of financial liability into equity (refer note 2.39) 214.75 6,381.47 - - - 6,381.47
Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - - (12.91) - (12.91)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 744.90 7,525.80 57.64 (3,292.16) 3.10 4,294.38
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report attached of even date
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
per Navneet Rai Kabra Dr. B Bhaskara Rao Dr. B Abhinay
Partner Managing Director Managing Director
Membership no.: 102328 DIN: 00008985 DIN: 01681273
Sd/- Sd/-
Vikas Maheshwari Uma Shankar Mantha
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Membership no: A21035
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

1.1 Company Overview

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (‘the Company”) was originally incorporated on 26
July 1973 under the name “Jagjit Singh and Sons Private Limited”” which was subsequently changed
to “Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited” on 2 January 2004. The Company was
converted into a public limited company under the Companies Act, 1956 on 29 January 2004 and
consequently, the name was changed to “Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited”.

The company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at D. No. 1-8-
31/1, Minister's Road, Secunderabad, Telangana, India - 500003.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services.
The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 21 July 2020.

1.2 Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements

a) Statement of Compliances:

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment)
Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

b) Basis of measurement:

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value or Amortised cost

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two
decimals, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated.

d) Change in accounting policies

New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 116 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result
of adoption of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in the current year, but do not
have an impact on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company. The Company has not early
adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but not yet effective.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Ind AS 116 — Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-
Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease). The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance
sheet.

Effective 01 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" applied to all lease contracts
existing on 01 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method and elected to measure the Right-
of-Use assets at an amount equal to the lease liability as at the date of initial application, on the date
of initial application. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted. On transition, the adoption of new standard resulted in recognition of Right
- of - Use asset (ROU) of Rs. 164.91 and a lease liability of Rs. 24.38 (net off lease payments paid
in advance). The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit for the year and earning per
share.

The Company applied the Standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. The Company
also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date,
have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and
lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in
the balance sheet at the date of initial application is 9.75% p.a.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS
17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

e) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions :

The preparation of Company’s standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition
and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors
have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The
Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in
the future.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer
Note 2.36 —Recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. Refer Note 2.27 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial
assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount
rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds
where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are
derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used
for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with
indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

Classification of financial instruments as equity

The Company has entered into Shareholders agreement (‘SHA”) with private equity (“PE” or the
“Investors™) investors for purchase of equity shares. As per the terms of the SHA, the Company
needs to provide an exit to Investor either through an Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) or Marketed
sale process based on best afford basis, which is in the control of the Company. Accordingly, the
Company has classified and measured the aforesaid instruments as equity, carried at cost.

f) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current
classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal
operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii.  itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A llablhty is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii.  itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

g)  Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting
policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.
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Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit
Committee and the Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major
assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions
made in measuring fair values is included in Note 2.35 — financial instruments.

1.3  Significant accounting policies
A. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital
services and sale of pharmacy items.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with
customers which establishes a comprehensive framework for revenue recognition. Revenue is
recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. When there is uncertainty on ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until
such uncertainty is resolved.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital
services. The performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery,
medical/clinical professional services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of
pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is recognised when the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With respect
to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date, revenue is
recognised to the extent of services rendered. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price,
which is the fixed consideration adjusted for discounts, amounts payable to customer in the nature
of commissions, principal versus agent considerations, any other rights and obligations as specified
in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers and
deposited back to the respective statutory authorities.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy and food and beverages (other than hospital services), where the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is
transferred to the customer.

Revenue from admission fees, tuition fees and other fees for academic courses are recognised on the
due date for the receipt of fees and apportioned over the academic term on a time proportion basis.
Fee waivers, discounts, rebates provided to students are reduced from fee received. Application
procession fees are recognised as revenue on receipt of the fees.
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Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the
patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at
the balance sheet date.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is
recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

B. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss
except to the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and
circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period
reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts
and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any
remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle
explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit
or loss.
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The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

C. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, borrowing
costs, if the recognition criteria are met, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it located.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for
its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company de-recognises the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful
life and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are de-recognised from the standalone financial
statements upon sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment outstanding as of each reporting date are recognised as capital advance and the cost of
property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital
work-in-progress.

De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.
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Depreciation

Depreciation/Amortisation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the
assets as estimated by the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
The Company has estimated the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant
and equipment which are in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Buildings 60

Medical and surgical equipment 13-14

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has
estimated the useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

¢ Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
e Leasehold land is in the nature of perpetual lease without any limited useful life and hence is
not amortised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

D. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the
period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is
derecognised.
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Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability
of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures
required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:
Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software 6

E. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

F. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies
of Impairment of non-financial assets.
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ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

G. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost
or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost
includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. The comparison of cost and net
realisable is made on an item by item basis.

H. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual
assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

1. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the standalone financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed
in the standalone financial statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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J. Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in
future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan
is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit
liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income (OCI).

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning
of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes
to the defined benefit liability (asset) as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of the past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be
estimated reliably.
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Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible
leave during the financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards
compensated absences at the end of the financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding
leave absence at the end of the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

K. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The
classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCl, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at
an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Financial assets at amortised cost

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

62



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may
make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the
fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.
Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Impairment of financials assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

€Xposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.
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Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue
receivables’ in these standalone financial statements).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to
be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts
are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

L. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

M. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
for the year relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

N. Segment reporting

Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Management
evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and transfers are reflected at
market prices. Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are
not allocated to any business segment.

Segment Policies:

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted
for preparing and presenting the standalone financial statements of the Company as a whole.
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.

0. Corporate social responsibility

The Company charges its Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure to the statement of profit and
loss.

P. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the standalone financial
statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only
disclosed.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Notes to the dalone fi ial state ts for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.1 (b) Intangible assets

Particulars Software Right of use Assets

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2018 20.56 -
Additions 20.84 -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 41.40 -
Balance as at 1 April 2019 41.40 -
Transferred from Property, Plant and Equipment - 190.56
Additions 9.38 26.95
Disposals (1.77) -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 49.01 217.51
All lated dlllUlAi ti

Balance as at 1 April 2018 7.23 -
Amortisation charge for the year 6.24 -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 13.47 -
Balance as at 1 April 2019 13.47 -
Transferred from Property, Plant and Equipment - 25.65
Amortisation charge for the year 8.77 12.41
Disposals (0.12) -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 22.12 38.06
Net book value

At 31 March 2019 27.93 -
At 31 March 2020 26.89 179.45
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the dalone fi ial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

2.2 Non current investments
(Unquoted, trade investment)

Investment in subsidiaries - valued at cost
a) Equity shares

1,172,281 (31 March 2019: 1,172,281) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in Arunodaya 63.34 63.34
Hospitals Private Limited

16,184,480 (31 March 2019: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS 161.84 0.10
Hospitals Private Limited

10,000 (31 March 2019: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS Swastha 0.10 0.10
Private Limited

10,000 (31 March 2019: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS Cuddles 0.10 0.10
Private Limited

10,000 (31 March 2019: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS Hospital 0.10 0.10
(Bhubaneswar) Private Limited

18,472,589 (31 March 2019: 12,338,155) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS 957.58 251.06
Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

5,100 (31 March 2019: 5,100) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in Iconkrishi Institute of 73.63 73.38
Medical Sciences Limited

8,000 (31 March 2019: 8,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in Saveera Institute of 18.79 18.03
Medical Sciences Private Limited

3,300,000 (31 March 2019: Nil) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS Hospital 94.22 -

Kurnool Private Limited (formerly known as Kurnool Rainbow Hospital Private Limited

b) Preference shares

30,990,000 (31 March 2019: 29,000,000) 0.001% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares 309.90 290.00
of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

10,000,000 (31 March 2019: 10,000,000) 12% cumulative optionally convertible redeemable 100.00 100.00
preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private

Limited

Total 1,779.59 796.21
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,779.59 796.21

Aggregate provision for impairment in value of investments - -

2.3 Loans (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)

(a) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties
Security deposits 24.00 21.45
-To related parties (refer note 2.28)
Loans to related parties 179.30 -
Total 203.30 21.45

(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Security deposits 8.84 9.08

-To related parties (refer note 2.28)
Loans to related parties 6.40 206.38

15.24 215.46




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the standalone financial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.4

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)

(a) Non-current

25

Deposits with remaining maturity more than 12 months * 0.10 6.36
Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.01 0.96
Total 0.11 7.32
* Bank deposits placed are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee.

(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) 32.80 56.54
Interest accrued on bank deposits 3.06 0.69
-To related parties (refer note 2.28)
Advance to related parties - 10.01
Interest accrued on loans 10.53 20.32
Total 46.39 87.56
Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances* 3524 166.90
Advance for purchase of shares - 60.00
Balance with government authorities 40.57 49.47
Prepaid expenses 1.26 1.91
Total 77.07 278.28

2.6

2.7

* Includes a transaction entered between the Company and Dr. B Bhaskara Rao towards purchase of land for a total consideration Rs. Nil (31 March
2019: Rs. 74.25). Out of the total consideration, an amount of Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs. 70.00) was paid as an capital advance. Refer note 2.28.

Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Medical consumables and pharmacy items 217.07 189.67

Total 217.07 189.67

Trade receivables (amortised cost)

Considered good - Unsecured

Trade receivables*® 991.51 1,000.30

Trade receivables-Credit impaired 325.67 298.04

Total receivables 1,317.18 1,298.34

Less: Expected credit loss for trade receivables (325.67) (298.04)
Net trade receivables 991.51 1,000.30

* Includes amount receivables from related party amounting to Rs. 2.13 (31 March 2019: Rs. 2.21). (Refer note 2.28).

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any trade or

other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
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Notes to the dalone fi ial stati ts for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.8 Cash and bank balances

a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- in current accounts
- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)

b) Other bank balances - Deposits with remaining maturity less than
12 months *

Total

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

22.43 8.83
24224 53.76
80.00 -
344.67 62.59
50.13 21.11
50.13 21.11
394.80 83.70

* Includes INR 29.05 (31 March 2019: 0.02) deposits placed which are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are maturing

with in 12 months of the reporting date.

¢) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars 1 April 2019 Cash flows Others 31 March 2020
Current borrowings 85.39 (64.58) - 20.81

Lease liabilities 24.38 (28.05) 37.82 34.15

Non- current borrowings (including current maturities) 1,762.09 43.20 1.05 1,806.34

Total liabilities from financing activities 1,871.85 (49.43) 38.87 1,861.29
Particulars 1 April 2018 Cash flows Others 31 March 2019
Current borrowings 265.71 (180.32) - 85.39
Lease liabilities (included in borrowings) 34.90 (10.52) - 24.38
Non- current borrowings (including current maturities)* 2,360.87 (607.39) 8.61 1,762.09
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,661.48 (798.23) 8.61 1,871.85

*Excludes liability component of financial instrument amounting to Rs. 3,995.81, which was converted into equity in previous year (refer note 2.39).

Others in non-current borrowings includes effect of amortization cost. Others in lease liabilities is towards addition of lease liability and interest accurred

thereon on adoption of Ind AS 116.
2.9 Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance tax (net of provision for taxation)

2.10 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Staff advances

Other advances

Total

207.53 200.22
207.53 200.22
10.12 6.65
4.50 4.12
7.74 6.64
5.00 0.25
27.36 17.66
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2.11 (a) Equity share capital As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Authorised
Equity shares
95,000,000 (31 March 2019: 95,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 950.00 950.00
950.00 950.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
74,489,552 (31 March 2019: 74,489,552) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 744.90 744.90
744.90 744.90
(a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Number of shares Amount _Number of shares Amount
At the commencement of the year* 74,489,552 744.90 50,149,732 501.50
Add: Conversion of put options to equity shares (refer note 2.39) - - 21,474,864 214.75
Add: Shares issued during the year - - 2,864,956 28.65
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 74,489,552 744.90 74,489,552 744.90
*As at 31 March 2018, issued equity shares excludes 21,474,864 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid which were classified as financial liability
(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/~ each. Each equity share holder is entitled to one vote per equity share held. In the event
of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
(c) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up
Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Number of shares % of holding  Number of shares % of holding
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao 18,304,164 24.57% 18,304,164 24.57%
General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd 31,739,906 42.61% 30,250,115 40.61%
Bollineni Ramanaiah Memorial Hospitals Private Limited 5,228,628 7.02% 4,800,632 6.44%
B. Seenaiah 4,582,517 6.15% 4,972,308 0.68%
(d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years immediately
preceding the reporting date
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up allotted as
bonus shares by capitalisation of securities premium - - - - 61,603,374
2.11 (b) Other equity As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Securities premium (refer below note 1)
Balance as per last financial statements 7,525.80 292.98
Add: Issue of shares - 85135
Add: Conversion of financial liability into equity (refer note 2.39) - 6,381.47
Closing balance 7,525.80 7,525.80
Adjustment reserve (refer below note 2)
Balance as per last financial statements 57.64 57.64
Movement during the year - -
Closing balance 57.64 57.64
Share warrants (refer below note 3)
Balance as per last financial statements 3.10 -
Add: Issue of share warrants - 3.10
Closing balance 3.10 3.10
Other comprehensive income
Balance as per last financial statements 520 18.11
Add: Re-measurement gain / (loss) on employee defined benefit plans (9.04) (12.91)
Closing balance (3.84) 5.20
Retained earnings (refer below note 4)
Balance as per last financial statements (3,297.36) (2,860.81)
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year 1,211.06 (436.55)
Closing balance (2,086.30) (3,297.36)
5,496.40 4,294.38

Note:

1. Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

2. Adjustment reserve

During the year ended 31 March 2014, pursuant to the Scheme of arrangement (Scheme) approved by Honourable High Court of Andhra Pradesh, the Company has
allotted 306,069 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to the share holders of the transferor company against 4,455,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each outstanding in the
transferor company in the ratio of 9 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every 131 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the transferor company. The difference of Rs. 41.49 on
account of the above share swap has been added to the adjustment reserve of the Company as per the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme of arrangement approved by the High Court, the Company allotted 969,231 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to the shareholders of the Demerged
company against 2,100,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each outstanding in the Demerged company in the ratio of 6 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every 13 equity
shares of Rs. 10 each of the Demerged company. The difference between the consideration payable and the value of net assets taken over as per the Scheme
amounting to Rs. 16.15 has been added to the adjustment reserve of the Company as per the Scheme

3. Issue of share warrants

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement (SSPA) along with General Atlantic Singapore
KH Pte Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor”) and other existing shareholders. In accordance with the aforesaid SSPA, the Company has
issued 3,103,731 numbers of share warrants to Dr B Bhaskara Rao. Each of these share warrants are convertible into 1 equity share of Rs. 10 each at a future date as
per the terms of SSPA. As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Company has received Rs. 1 each against the share warrants issued aggregating to Rs. 3.10.

4. Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits/losses (net of appropriations) of the company earned till date, including items of other comprehensive income.



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.12

Notes:

iii

vi

vii

Long-term borrowings (at amortised cost)

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Non-current Current* Non-current Current*
Secured
Term loans from banks
- HDFC Bank equipment loan - 1 (refer note i) 63.21 15.85 79.06 10.94
- HDFC Bank equipment loan - 2 (refer note ii) 105.91 9.37 122.08 11.80
- Federal bank term loan (refer note iii) 625.16 167.74 494.07 66.24
Total loans from banks (A) 794.28 192.96 695.21 88.98
Term loans from other parties
- Siemens Financial Services Private Limited (refer note iv) - - - 16.75
- NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited (refer note v) 676.95 142.15 819.10 142.04
Total loans from other parties (B) 676.95 142.15 819.10 158.79
Finance lease obligation (refer note vi) - - 9.41 14.97
Total unsecured loans (C) - - 9.41 14.97
Total (A) + (B) + (C) 1,471.23 335.11 1,523.72 262.74

*Refer current maturities of long term borrowings under note 2.13 (b)

Term loan - 1 from HDFC bank towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the medical equipment out of sanctioned
facility, carrying an interest rate of 9.5% p.a. fixed (31 March 2019: 9.5% p.a. fixed). This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instalments starting from
July 2017 to June 2024.

Term loan - 2 from HDFC bank towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the medical equipment out of sanctioned
facility, carrying an interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 0.65%. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr B Bhaskara rao. This loan is repayable in 84 unequal
monthly instalments starting from January 2019 to December 2024.

Federal Bank term loan consists of 3 loans (31 March 2019: 2 loans). The first two loans is secured by exclusive charge on existing hospital at Rajahmundry
and personal gurantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The new loan is secured by Pari Passu first charge on fixed assets of the Company (excluding Rajahmundry
hospital) and personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao and Dr. B. Abhinay. Also the loans are secured by pledge of minimum 29% shareholding of the
KIMS Hospital Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. The loan is repayable in 66 equal monthly instalments starting from May 2019 to April 2025
and carries an interest rate ranging from 9.50% to 9.80% p.a. (31 March 2019: 9.50% to 9.80% p.a).

Term loan - Siemens Financial Services Private Limited consists of 1 loans (31 March 2019: 1 loans) secured by way of hypothecation of medical and
surgical equipment procured from the said loan and personal guarantee of Dr. B Bhaskara Rao. The loans are repayable in unequal monthly instalments from
January 2012 to July 2019 and carries interests rate ranging from 11% to 13.50% p.a. (31 March 2019 : interests rate ranging from 11 % to 13.50% p.a.).

Term loan from NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited is secured by a first pari-passu mortgage and charge of immovable properties of the Secunderabad
hospital and Nellore hospital building. Also secured by a first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Secunderabad hospital and Nellore Hospital
movable properties including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable
properties of whatsoever nature excluding the equipment which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans and a second pari-passu
mortgage and charge of immovable properties of the Ongole hospital. Also includes a second pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Ongole hospital
movable properties including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable
properties of whatsoever nature excluding the equipment's which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans; a second charge on the entire
cash flows, receivables, book debts and revenues of the Company, of whatsoever nature and wherever arising; subject to the prior charge of the working
capital lenders. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is repayable in 72 equal monthly instalments and carries an interest rate of
9.10% p.a. (31 March 2019: 9.10% p.a.).

Finance lease obligations pertain to medical equipment's taken on finance lease. The lease term of such medical equipment is 5 to 6 years with equated
monthly payments. The same carries an interest rate ranging from 17.18% to 44.44% p.a (31 March 2019: 17.18% to 44.44% p.a.).

The legal title of medical equipment will be transferred to the Company at the end of the lease term of the respective agreements at nominal values. The said
lease arrangement does not contain any contingent rent. From current year, these lease have been classified as per Ind AS 116 - "Leases".

31 March 2019

Finance lease obligations are payable as follows: Future minimum Interest element of Present value of
lease payments MLP minimum lease
(MLP) payments

Within less than one year 23.55 8.58 14.97

Between one and five years 15.31 5.90 9.41

After more than five years - - -

Total 38.86 14.48 24.38

Aggregate amount of secured loans (including current maturities of long term borrowings) guaranteed by few Directors is Rs.1,727.28 (31 March 2019: Rs.
1,672.09)
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Notes to the dalone fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

2.13 Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost)

(a)

(b)

Non-current

Security deposits 0.09 0.09
Total 0.09 0.09
Current

Current maturity of long term borrowings (refer note 2.12) 335.11 262.74
Capital creditors 13.45 6.93
Employee benefits payable* 61.61 108.90
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.99 1.29
Security and caution deposit 6.52 7.49
Total 417.68 387.35

*Includes payables to related parties. For details refer note 2.28.
Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2.27) 122.02 91.63

Total 122.02 91.63

Short-term borrowings (at amortised cost)

Secured

Working capital loans from banks (refer note i) 20.81 85.39
Total 20.81 85.39
Notes

Working capital loans consists of loans from :

a) Andhra bank - Loan is secured by pari passu first charge on entire movable and immovable assets (existing and future assets) of the Company by way
of hypothecation excluding the assets specifically charged to the equipment financers and Rajahmundry unit property and pari passu second charge on
entire fixed assets (existing and future) of the Company. Further, it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr B Bhaskara Rao, Sri B. Krishnaiah, Sri B.
Seenaiah and D. Anitha. Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 1Y MCLR+1.20% (31 March 2019: 1Y MCLR+1.20%). Closing
balance as at 31 March 2020 Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs. 23.96).

b) Federal bank - Loan is secured by exclusive charge on the current assets of the Rajahmundry Hospital, both current and future. Further it is also
secured by exclusive charge on existing hospital at Rajahmundry and pledge of minimum 29% shareholding of the KIMS Hospital Private Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.35%
p-a. (31 March 2019: 9.40% p.a). Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 Rs. 20.81 (31 March 2019: Rs. 61.43).

¢) HDFC Bank - Loan is secured by Exclusive charge on the Medical Equipment purchased out the earlier sanctioned Term Loans, First pari passu first
charge on current assets of the Company and second paripassu charge on the properties owned by Company located at (i) D No.1-8-31/1, Sy
n0.80(old)and Sy No.52,53 (new), Minister Road, secunderabad-500003, (ii)Sy no.153/3A, North By-pass Road, NHS, Behind Agriculture Market yard,
Ongole-523001 and (iii) CAS No.562/1-A, Plot No.2,3,4,5,6 GNT Road, Dargamitta, Nellore. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara
Rao. Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 1Y MCLR+1.35%. Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs. Nil)

Amount of secured loans guaranteed by directors is Rs. 20.81 (31 March 2019: Rs. 85.39).

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 2.31) 3.86 -

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 775.91 736.71
Total 779.77 736.71

The above includes payable to related party. For details refer note 2.28
Trade paybles are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms.
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2.17 Short term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2.27)
Compensated absences

Total
2.18 Other liabilities

(a) Non-current
Financial guarantee liability

=

Total

(b,

=

Current

Statutory dues payable
Contract liabilities
Financial guarantee liability
Other liabilities

Total

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

2.02 -
52.17 51.03
54.19 51.03
30.27 25.87
30.27 25.87
43.73 44.47
18.90 35.70

5.23 3.98
30.68 26.69
98.54 110.84
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2.19

A

2.20

Revenue from operations

Income from medical and healthcare services (Refer note 2.37)

Income from hospital services
Income from sale of pharmacy

Total

Other operating income (Refer note 2.37)

Income from academic courses
Income from sale of food and beverages
Other hospital income

Total
Total revenue from operations (A+B)
Other income

Interest income on:

- fixed deposits

- income tax refunds

- loans to related parties
Sub lease income
Liabilities no longer required written back
Guarantee commission income
Miscellaneous income

Total

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

5,049.75 4,465.50
2,666.59 2,440.87
7,716.34 6,906.37
61.57 58.26
112.98 101.70
8.81 2.80
183.36 162.76
7,899.70 7,069.13
4.72 3.33
2.06 -
28.36 21.94
1.46 1.95
3.16 16.62
4.06 291
27.08 17.98
70.90 64.73
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221

2.22

2.23

Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Opening stock 189.67 162.83

Add: Purchases during the year 1,825.90 1,693.20

Less: Closing stock 217.07 189.67
Total 1,798.50 1,666.36
Employee benefit expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,269.97 1,173.66
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note no 2.27) 85.77 84.43
Staff welfare expenses 13.96 11.01
Total 1,369.70 1,269.10
Finance cost
Interest from banks

- term loans 177.27 181.32

- other loans 16.50 11.72
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note no 2.26) 10.87 12.13
liability component of financial instruments (refer note no 2.39) - 120.01
Others 1.05 8.61
Total 205.69 333.79
Other expenses
Consultancy charges 1,548.74 1,448.30
House keeping expenses 235.55 231.38
Power and fuel 146.28 144.22
Catering and patient welfare expenses 104.88 97.05
Rent (refer note 2.26) 24.78 25.49
Tests and investigations 10.48 10.66
Academic courses expenses 1.03 0.83
Repairs and maintenance:

- Medical equipment 141.96 133.28

- Hospital building and others 97.91 81.21
Printing and stationery 28.25 24.76
Payment to auditors (refer note A below) 5.18 13.32
Legal and professional charges 53.07 100.73
Rates and taxes 56.75 49.51
Loss on fair value changes in financial instrument (refer note 2.39) - 871.27
Travelling and conveyance 22.20 26.06
Advertisement and publicity 55.54 54.29
Communication expenses 9.78 8.93
Trade receivable written off 0.64 41.56
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 27.63 155.84
Insurance 593 4.40
Subscriptions and membership fees 5.26 3.66
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 4.06 1.52
Investment written off - 0.10
Donations (refer note B below) 51.17 1.65
Contributions towards Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 2.33) 15.14 10.14
Bank charges 31.89 26.10
Directors sitting fee 1.23 1.84
Miscellaneous expenses 1971 2104
Total 2,705.04 3,589.14

Note A: Payment to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019*
Statutory audit fee 3.00 3.30
Fees paid to erstwhile auditor in the capacity of Statutory auditor* 2.00 -
Other services ** - 9.82
Out of pocket expenses 0.18 0.20

* Paid to erstwhile statutory auditors
** Paid for services related to initial public offering.

Note B: Donations

Donations includes subscription to electoral bonds of Rs. 50 (31 March 2019: Rs. Nil).
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2.25

Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Conti t liabilities

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
i)  Guarantee issued by the Company on behalf of related entities 1,680.00 1,120.00
(Value of loan availed outstanding as at period end against aforesaid guarantee is Rs. 1,348.94 (31
March 2019: Rs. 1,004.36 ))
ii)  Luxury tax matters in dispute 82.27 82.27
iif)  Service tax matters in dispute - 31.63
iv) VAT matters in dispute 1.76 1.76
v)  Medical claims (gross, excluding interest/costs) 94.98 82.68
vi)  Other claims 23.76 23.76

vii) The Company has obtained a stay from High Court for the state of Andhra Pradesh, dated 11 November 2014, directing the local authorities not to
proceed with the acquisition of part of the building in Nellore for the purpose of road widening. No provision thereof has been made in the Standalone
Ind AS financials statements.

viii) An individual has filed a consumer case at National Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission against the Company along with 3 other hospitals
demanding a total compensation of Rs. 235.01 (31 March 2019: Rs. 235.01) along with a further interest @ 18% p.a towards medical negligence. Based
on the legal opinion obtained by the company and the internal evaluation by the management, the Company believes that it has strong case in this regard
and there shall not be any outflow of resources. No provision thereof has been made in the Standalone Ind AS financial statement.

ix) On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining which
components of their employee's compensation are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution obligations, for
Provident Fund contributions under Indian law. There are interpretative issues relating to the restrospective applicability of the judgement. However,
from the current year, the Company has complied with the aforesaid Supreme court's judgement. The Company will evaluate the same and update its
position for earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the subject.

Notes:
i. Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash flow, if any, in respect of the
above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

ii. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable in its standalone financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceeding to have a
materially adverse effect on its financial position.

(b) Commitments

Particulars As at Asat
" 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
I) Capital commitment
i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 11.18 52.62

advances)

1I) Other commitments
i) During the previous year, the Company had acquired 80% shareholding in Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited ('Saveera'). As per the
shareholder's agreement, the Company agreed to transfer 3.5% of the equity shares of Saveera to the minority shareholders of Saveera subject to|
fulfillment of certain conditions.
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2.26  Lease

Operating and Finance leases in the capacity of lessee

The Company has lease contracts for various items of land, building and medical equipment used in its operations. Leases of building, plant and
machinery generally have lease terms between 3 and 15 years. The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the
leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options.

The Company has a perpetual leasehold land and is not amortized.

Leases of buildings and machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Company applies the
‘shrot-term lease * and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide
flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Land Building Medical equij t Total
As at 31 March 2019 - - - -
Addition on adoption of Ind AS 116 (net) 151.82 - 13.10 164.91
Additions - 26.95 - 26.95
Amortization expense - 3.79 8.61 12.41
As at 31 March 2020 151.82 23.15 4.48 179.45
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
As at As at

Opening balance

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Addition on adoption of Ind AS 116 24.37 -
Additions 26.95 -
Accretion of interest 10.87 -
Payments (28.05) -
As at 31 March 34.14 -
Current 8.52 -
Non-current 25.62 -
The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss:
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Amortization expense of right-of-use assets 12.41 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 10.87 -
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets (included in other expenses) 24.78 2549
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 48.06 25.49

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 52.83 in 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: Rs. 25.49). The Company also had non-cash

additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of Rs. 26.95 in 31 March 2020.

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination

options that are not included in the lease term:

As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Within less than one year 14.27 -
Between one and five years 25.13 -
After more than five years 11.14 -
Total 50.54 -
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2.27
@)

Employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Company operate post-employment defined benefit plan that provides for gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least
five years of continuous services, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed services at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is
administered by trust formed for this purpose and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company's obligation in respect of gratuity
plan, which is a defined benefit plan is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date.

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts

recognised in the Company's standal financial stat ts as at the balance sheet date:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at|
31 March 2019

Defined benefit obligations 148.08 111.40
Fair value of plan assets 24.05 19.77
Net defined benefit obligations 124.03 91.63
Total employee benefit liability 124.03 91.63
Non-current 122.02 91.63
Current 2.02 -
B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit obligation and its components.
i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

As at As at|

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year 111.40 75.06
Benefits paid (0.50) (2.92)
Current service cost 17.71 14.57
Interest cost 7.63 5.47
Actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in other comprehensive income
- Changes in demographic assumptions (0.41) 4.72
- Changes in financial assumptions 12.86 12.03
- experience adjustments (0.62) 2.47
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 148.08 111.40
ii) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

. As at As at|
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Plan assets at beginning of the year 19.77 17.88
Contributions paid into the plan 4.07 4.10
Interest income 0.95 1.34
Benefits paid (0.50) (2.92)
Return on plan assets (0.24) (0.63)
Plan assets at end of the year 24.05 19.77
Net defined benefit liability 124.03 91.63
C i) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 17.71 14.57
Interest on net defined benefit obligation 6.68 4.13
Net gratuity cost, included in 'employee benefits expense’ 24.39 18.70
C ii) Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Actuarial (gain) / loss on net defined benefit obligation (12.08) (19.85)
D Plan assets
Plan assets comprises of the following:

. As at As at|
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fund managed by Insurer 24.05 19.77
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(ii)

E Defined benefit obligation
i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Principal actuarial assumptions As at As at|
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate 5.85% 7.50%)
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at As at|
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1st following year 26.07 19.25
Year2 to 5 72.24 56.36
Year 6 to 9 47.76 41.52
Year 10 and above 73.00 73.95

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated
Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into accounts the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the am
shown below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the year ended 31 March 2019
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) (8.06) 8.96 (6.19) 6.90

Salary escalation rate (1% movement) 8.36 (7.73) 6.62 (6.11)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumption shown.

Defined contribution plan

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss towards
i) Provident fund 43.01 37.54
ii) Employee state insurance 18.36 28.19
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2.28

Related party disclosures

(a) Nature of relationship and name of related parties

Nature of rel.

Name of related parties

Subsidiaries

Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited

KIMS Hospitals Private Limited

KIMS Swastha Private Limited

KIMS Cuddles Private Limited

KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited (closed on 30 March 2019)

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited

Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (w.e.f 05 May 2018)
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (w.e.f 05 September 2018)
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as Kurnool Rainbow
Hospitals private Limited) (w.e.f 01 April 2019)

Key Management personnel (KMP)

Dr. B Bhaskara Rao - Managing Director

Dr. B Abhinay- Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f 03 July 2019)
Mr. Uma Shankar Mantha - Company secretary

Mr. Vikas Maheshwari - Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha -Whole-time Director

Directors

Mr. B Krishnaiah - Chairman (resigned on 18 January 2019)
Mr G Rajeswara Rao

Mrs Jyothi Prasad

Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik (w.e.f 20 June 2018)

Mr. Shantanu Rastogi (w.e.f 20 June 2018)

Mr K Padmanaabhaiah (resigned w.e.f. 20 June 2018)

Mr Amitabha Guha (resigned w.e.f. 18 January 2019)

Relative of KMP

Dr. Raavi Swetha- Daughter in law of Managing Director

Enterprises under control or joint control of
KMP and other relative (where transaction exists)

Sri Viswa Medicare Limited
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre

Enterprise having significant influence over the company

India Advantage Fund S31 (until 20 June 2018)
General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd (w.e.f. 20 June 2018)

(b) Transactions with related parties

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

i Loans and advances given

KIMS Hospitals Private Limited

KIMS Swastha Private Limited

KIMS Foundation and Research Centre

Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited

ii. Refund of loans and advances
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited

iii. Interest income earned on loans given
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited
KIMS Swastha Private Limited
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited

iv. Payment for purchase of land
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao

v. Professional fee to KMP
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao

vi. Professional fee to relative of KMP
Dr. Raavi Swetha

vii. Rent to KMP
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao

viii.  Managerial remuneration *
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha
Mr B Abhinay
Vikas Maheshwari
Uma Shankar Mantha

ix. Salary to relative of KMP
Mr B Abhinay

X. Directors sitting fee
Mr B Krishnaiah
Mr G Rajeswara Rao
Mrs Jyothi Prasad
Mr K Padmanabhaiah
Mr Amitabha Guha

2.00 5.10
0.05 0.07
- 358
42.50 195.80
77.00 37.00
87.50 -
10.01 5.00
135.74 -
- 166.50
54.00 -
40.00 -
.39 1055
051 051
5.56 891
938 1.97
452 -
425 70.00
18.00 18.00
216 1.80
0.10 0.10
24.00 24.00
3.60 3.00
775 535
737 6.57
1.98 178
- 3.00

- 0.29
0.64 0.47
0.58 038
- 023

- 0.47
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(b) Tr ctions with related parties ( i 1)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
xi. Expenditure towards CSR
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre 14.52 10.14
Xii Purchase of pharmacy items
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 0.18 0.95
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.26 -
Savera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.03 -
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as 030 -
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited)
xiii. Revenue from sale of pharmacy
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 4.90 9.95
Arunodaya Hospitals private Limited 0.17 0.11
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.65 -
Savera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.56 -
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as 0.39 -
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited)
xiv. Investment in subsidiaries
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (equity shares) 0.25 73.38
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (preference shares) - 100.00
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (equity shares) 0.75 18.03
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (preference shares) 19.90 290.00
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 706.52 -
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as 94.22 -
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited)
KIMS Hospital Private Limited 161.74 -
XV Write off of investment
KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited - 0.10
XVi. Revenue from Test and Investigations
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 11.25 -
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.66 -
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 1.30 -
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited) 1.74 -
xvii.  Guarantee given on behalf of
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited - 170.00
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited) 530.00 -
Savera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 30.00 550.00
xviii. Commission income on guarantees given to
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 0.55 2.00
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.52 0.18
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 1.52 0.71
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited) 1.47 -
Xix. Interest expense
India Advantage Fund - 120.01
XX. Fair value changes in financial instrument
India Advantage Fund - 871.27
xxi. Derecognition of financial liability
India Advantage Fund - 6,596.22
xxii.  Issue of equity shares including share premium
General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd - 880.00
xxiii.  Cash received for issue of share warrants
Dr B Bhaskara Rao - 3.10
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() The balances receivables from and payable to related parties
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
i Trade receivables
Sri Viswa Medicare Limited 213 221
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 132 -
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 1.16 -
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited) 152 -
ii. Loans
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited - 133.74
KIMS Swastha Private Limited 6.40 6.34
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 71.80 2930
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 60.00 37.00
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited) 47.50 -
i Other advances
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre - 10.01
iv. Interest accrued on loans
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited - 17.60
KIMS Swastha Private Limited 1.46 0.95
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 5.00 -
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited - 1.77
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited) 4.07 -
v Capital advance
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao - 70.00
vi. Trade payables
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao 0.10 136
Dr. Raavi Sweata 0.16 0.14
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.26 -
Savera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.03 -
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited) 0.30 -
vii Employee benefits payable
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao - 1.16
Mr. B Abhinay 032 0.47
Mr. Vikas Maheshwari ** 031 0.00
Mr. Uma Shankar Mantha 0.12 0.11
Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha 0.16 0.14
viii. Guarantee given on behalf of
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 400.00 400.00
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 170.00 170.00
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 580.00 550.00
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited) 530.00 -
ix. Financial guarantee liability
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 5.07 9.42
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 2.92 3.19
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 16.46 17.24
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited ( formerly known as
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals private Limited) 11.06 -
(d) For certain loans availed by the Company, few Directors of the Company have given personal guarantee amounting to Rs. 1,748.09 (31 March

2019: Rs. 1,757.48),

* The managerial personnel are covered by the Company's gratuity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees of the
Company. The proportionate amount of gratuity and leave encashment pertaining to the managerial personnel has not been included in the aforementioned

disclosures as these are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole

** The amount is below rounding off norms adopted by Company.

Terms and conditions:
All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
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2.29

2.30

231

Earnings per share (EPS)

. For the year ended 31 For the year ended
Particulars March 2020 31 March 2019
Earnings
Profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to equity shareholders 1,211.06 (436.55)
Shares
Number shares at the beginning of the year 74,489,552 50,149,732
Add: Conversion of put options to equity shares - 21,474,864
Add: Equity shares issued during the year - 2,864,956
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 74,489,552 74,489,552
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 74,489,552 69,154,797
Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of issue of share warrant that have dilutive effect 594,936 548,813
on EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period - Diluted 75,084,488 69,703,610
Earnings per share of par value INR. 10 each-Basic (INR) 16.26 (6.31)
Earnings per share of par value INR 10 each-Diluted (INR)* 16.13 (6.31)

*For the year ended 31 March 2019, the share warrants are anti dilutive in nature and hence basic and dilutive EPS are same.

Segment information

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the “management approach” as defined in
Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole operating segment is therefore
‘Medical and Healthcare Services’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the
standalone financial statements.

Further the business operation of the Company are concentrated in India, and hence, the Company is considered to operate only in one geographical segment.

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 has been made in the standalone
financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that
may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("The MSMED Act) is not expected
to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of the year

- Principal 3.86 -

- Interest - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which h has been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - -
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.
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2.32 Investments, loans, guarantees and security:

(a) The Company has made investment in the following Companies:

Entity As at Allotted / Sold during the Adjustment As at
01 April 2019 | purchased during year 31 March 2020
the year
Investment in securities
KIMS Hospital Private Limited 0.10 161.74 - - 161.84
KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 0.10 - - - 0.10
KIMS Swastha Private Limited 0.10 - - - 0.10
Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited 63.34 - - - 63.34
KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Private Limited 251.06 710.34 - (3.82) 957.58
KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 0.10 - - - 0.10
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 173.38 - - 0.25 173.63
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 308.03 20.65 - - 328.68
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited - 94.22 - - 94.22
Entity As at Allotted / Sold during the Adjustment As at
01 April 2018 | purchased during year 31 March 2019
the year
Investment in securities
KIMS Hospital Private Limited 0.10 - - - 0.10
KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 0.10 - - - 0.10
KIMS Swastha Private Limited 0.10 - - - 0.10
Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited 63.34 - - - 63.34
KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Private Limited 251.06 - - - 251.06
KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited 0.10 - - (0.10) -
KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 0.10 - - - 0.10
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited - 173.38 - - 173.38
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited - 308.03 - - 308.03
(b) The Company has given unsecured loans to its following subsidiaries/associate:
Entity Purpose of loans As at| Given during the | Repaid during the As at
01 April 2019 year year 31 March 2020
KIMS Hospital Private Limited Financial assistance 133.74 2.00 (135.74) -
KIMS Swastha Private Limited Financial assistance 6.34 0.05 - 6.40
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Financial assistance 29.30 42.50 - 71.80
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Financial assistance 37.00 77.00 (54.00) 60.00
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited Fi ial assi e - 87.50 (40.00) 47.50
Entity Purpose of loans As at| Given during the | Repaid during the As at
01 April 2018 year year 31 March 2019
KIMS Hospital Private Limited Financial assistance 128.64 5.10 - 133.74
KIMS Swastha Private Limited Financial assistance 6.27 0.07 - 6.34
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Financial assistance - 195.80 (166.50) 29.30
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Fi ial assi e - 37.00 - 37.00
(c) Details of guarantee provided
The Company has provided guarantees to the following subsidiaries:
For the year ended 31 March 2020
KIMS Hospital Iconkrishi Saveera Institute [ KIMS Hospitals | Total for the year
Parti Enterprises Institute of of Medical Kurnool Private | ended 31 March
articulars . . . ! . . L.
Private Limited | Medical S S Private Limited 2020
Private Limited Limited
Guarantee provided outstanding as at the beginning of the year 400.00 170.00 550.00 - 1,120.00
Guarantee provided during the financial year - - 30.00 530.00 560.00
Guarantee provided outstanding as at the end of the year 400.00 170.00 580.00 530.00 1,680.00
For the year ended 31 March 2019
KIMS Hospital Iconkrishi Saveera Institute | KIMS Hospitals | Total for the year
Parti Enterprises Institute of of Medical Kurnool Private | ended 31 March
articulars N . . ! . . -
Private Limited | Medical S S Private Limited 2019
Private Limited Limited
Guarantee provided outstanding as at the beginning of the year 400.00 - - - 400.00
Guarantee provided during the financial year - 170.00 550.00 - 720.00
Guarantee provided settled/expired during the financial year - - - - -
Guarantee provided outstanding as at the end of the year 400.00 170.00 550.00 - 1,120.00

2.3

w

Consequent to the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has made contributions as stated below. The same is in line with activities
specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and activities approved by the CSR committee:

For the year

Particulars ended| For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019,
a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 15.14 10.14
b) Amount spent during the year
(1) Construction/acquisition of any assets - -
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above: - -
Promoting preventive healthcare* 15.14 10.14
Total 15.14 10.14

* The above amounts include Rs. 14.52 (31 March 2019: Rs. 10.14 ) Spent by way of contribution to KIMS Foundation and Research Centre, a registered trust where

KMP have significant influence.
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2.34 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the 'adjusted net debt' to 'total equity' ratio.

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity

excluding adjustment reserve.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 was as follows:

Particulars As at
31 March 2020

As at|
31 March 2019

Total borrowings 1,827.15 1,871.85
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 344.67 62.59
Adjusted net debt 1,482.48 1,809.26
Total equity 6,183.66 4,981.64
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 0.24 0.36
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2.35 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management

AL A ing classification and fair values
As at 31 March 2020
Financial assets — Fi ial Fi ial Total carrying .
N . I Fair value level
amortised cost liabilities - liabilities - amount
FVTPL amortised cost
Fi ial assets not ed at fair value (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 991.51 - - 991.51 -
Investments 1,779.59 - - 1,779.59 -
Cash and cash equivalents 344.67 - - 344.67 -
Bank balances other than above 50.13 - - 50.13 -
Loans 218.54 - - 218.54 -
Other financial assets 46.50 - - 46.50 -
Total 3,430.94 - - 3,430.94
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value (Refer note below)
Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities’ - - 1,471.23 1,471.23 -
Lease liabilities 25.62 25.62 -
Short-term borrowings - - 20.81 20.81 -
Trade payables - - 779.77 779.77 -
Other financial liabilities - - 417.77 417.77 -
Total - - 2,715.20 2,715.20

As at 31 March 2019

Financial assets — Financial Financial Total carrying .
N e e Fair value level
amortised cost liabilities - liabilities - amount
FVTPL amortised cost
Fi ial assets not ed at fair value (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 1,000.30 - - 1,000.30 -
Investments 796.21 - - 796.21 -
Cash and cash equivalents 62.59 - - 62.59 -
Bank balances other than above 21.11 - - 21.11 -
Loans 236.91 - - 236.91 -
Other financial assets 94.88 - - 94.88 -
Total 2,212.00 - - 2,212.00 -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value (Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities - - 1,523.72 1,523.72 -
Short-term borrowings - - 85.39 85.39 -
Trade payables - - 736.71 736.71 -
Other financial liabilities - - 387.44 387.44 -
Total - - 2,733.26 2,733.26 -

Note: The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as short-term trade receivables or short-term trade payables because
their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.

The management assessed that loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts as fair value.

B. Fi ial risk t
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The
Board of Directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management
policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all the employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
the internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The
credit risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions and other financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from the
trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.
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The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the
past and the recent collection trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to INR.
1,317.18 as on 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 : INR. 1,298.34). The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year
was as follows:

Allowance for credit losses As at As at|

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance 298.04 142.20
Credit loss added / (reversed) 27.63 155.84
Closing balance 325.67 298.04
(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term
and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities
of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also
has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a timely and cost-
effective manner.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2020:

Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year 1 -5 years More than 5 years Total

Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) 1,471.23 - 1,471.23 - 1,471.23
Lease liabilities 25.62 25.62 - - 25.62
Short-term borrowings 20.81 20.81 - - 20.81
Trade payables 779.77 779.77 - - 779.77
Other financial liabilities 417.77 417.68 0.09 - 417.77
Total 2,715.20 1,243.88 1,471.32 - 2,715.20

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2019:

Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year 1 -5 years More than 5 years Total

Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) 1,523.72 - 1,523.72 - 1,523.72
Short-term borrowings 85.39 85.39 - - 85.39
Trade payables 736.71 736.71 - - 736.71
Other financial liabilities 387.44 387.35 0.09 - 387.44
Total 2,733.26 1,209.45 1,523.81 - 2,733.26

The Company has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Company to repay the loan earlier than
indicated in the above table.

C. Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Variable rate long term borrowings (including current maturities) and short term borrowings 1,748.09 1,740.73

Total borrowings 1,748.09 1,740.73

(i) Sensitivity

Impact on profit or loss Impact on equity, net of tax
Particulars As at31 March  Asat31 March  Asat31 March  As at 31 March
2020 2019 2020 2019
Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR (17.48) (17.41) (11.37) (11.32)
1% decrease in MCLR 17.48 17.41 11.37 11.32

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loans from banks.

D. Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to currency risk.
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2.36 Income-tax
a. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year For the year
ended 31 March ended 31 March
2020 2019
Current tax 387.41 345.55
Taxes for earlier years (19.93) -
Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences (113.49) (43.23)
Tax expenses for the year 253.99 302.32

b. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the year ended 31 March 2019
Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax
benefit benefit
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans (12.08) 3.04 (9.04) (19.85) 6.94 (12.91)
c. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
For the year For the year
ended 31 March ended
2020 31 March 2019,
Loss before tax 1,465.05 (134.23)
Enacted tax rates 25.168% 34.944%)|
Tax expense at enacted rates 368.72 (46.91)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating taxable i
Non-deductible expenses 23.50 349.44
Impact of change in rate of tax (118.30) -
Adjustment in respect of income-tax for earlier years (19.93) -
Others - (0.22)
Total 253.99 302.32
d. Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019,
Deferred tax asset
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 81.97 104.15
Provision for employee benefits 53.19 5922
Others 3.36 6.34
Total deferred tax asset 138.52 169.71
Deferred tax liability
Expenses of depreciation on the fixed assets under income-tax, 1961 over 441.66 588.93
Others 1.25 1.69)
Total deferred tax liability 442.91 590.62
Deferred tax liability (net) (304.39) (420.91)
(ii) Movement in temporary differences
Provision for Provision for Others items - Expenses of Others items - Total
doubtful employee benefits assets depreciation on the liability
receivables fixed assets under
income tax, 1961
over depreciation
under Companies
Act.
Balance as at 1 April 2018 49.69 4237 6.73 (564.56) (5.31) (471.09)
Recognised in profit or loss during 2018-19 54.46 9.92 (0.38) (24.37) 3.62 43.24
Recognised in OCI during 2018-19 - 6.94 - - - 6.94
Balance as at 31 March 2019 104.15 59.22 6.34 (588.93) (1.69) (420.91)
Recognised in profit or loss during 2019-20 (22.18) (9.07) (2.98) 147.27 0.44 113.48
Recognised in OCI during 2019-20 - 3.04 - - - 3.04
Balance as at 31 March 2020 81.97 53.19 3.36 (441.66) (1.25) (304.39)
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2.37 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Income from hospital services 5,049.75 4,465.50
Income from pharmacy 2,666.59 2,440.87
Total revenue from contracts with customers 7,716.34 6,906.38
India 7,716.34 6,906.38
Outside India - -
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time 5,049.75 4,465.50
Goods transferred at a point of time 2,666.59 2,440.87
Total revenue from contracts with customers 7,716.34 6,906.38
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:
Contract price 8,282.43 7,511.98
Less: Discounts and disallowances (534.91) (522.95)
Less: Others (31.18) (82.65)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 7,716.34 6,906.38

Contract balances

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Trade receivables
Contract assets
Contract liabilities

991.51
32.80
18.90

1,000.30
56.54
35.70

Contract liability: During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 35.70 from advance receivied from patients
outstanding as on 31 March 2019. During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 42.24 from advance receivied from

patients outstanding as on 31 March 2018.

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has transferred Rs. 56.54 of contract assets as at 31 March 2019 to trade receivables
on completion of performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the company has transferred Rs. 54.06 of contract assets as at 31 March

2018 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.
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2.38 Investments during the year ended 31 March 2020
(i) The Company has increased its stake in KIMS Hospitals Enterprise Private Limited from 50.27 % to 75.26% through secondary purchase of 6,134,434

equity shares from existing shareholders in three tranches for a total amount of Rs. 710.34. In the first two tranche 4,357,021 shares were purchased at
Rs.110 (premium of Rs. 100) per share and in the third tranche 1,777,413 shares were purchased at Rs.130 (premium of Rs.120) per share. The same
has been shown as non current investments in the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

(ii) The Company has entered into a share purchase agreement dated 01 April 2019 with the existing shareholders of KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private

2.39

Limited to acquire 55% equity shares at a total consideration of Rs. 81.68. The same has been shown as non current investments in the standalone Ind
AS financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement (SSPA) along with General
Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor”) and other existing shareholders through which new
investor have purchased few shares from the existing shareholders and entire shares from the old investor. The terms of the contract with the new
investor had resulted in de-recognition of the existing liability by Rs. 5,604.94 (as at 31 March 2018) and recognition of the same in equity share
capital and securities premium.

Apart from the exit to the old investor, the new investor has also infused an amount of Rs. 880 in the form of 2,864,956 equity shares of face value of
Rs. 10 each, fully paid up at the premium of Rs. 297.16 per share in the Company.

Due to the said financial liability, the Company has recognised loss on fair value changes in financial instruments amounting to Rs. Nil (31 March
2019 Rs. 871.27) and interest expense on finance component of financial instruments amounting to Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs. 120.01).

2.40 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Company

does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

2.41 Global Health Pandemic

The outbreak of COVID-19 in many countries has brought about disruptions to businesses around the world and uncertainty to the global economy.
The Company is closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of it’s business, including how it will impact its employees, vendors and
business partners. The Company based on the information available to date, both internal and external, considered the uncertainty relating to the
COVID-19 pandemic in assessing its impact. Based on the current estimates, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of assets, and
does not foresee any material adverse impact on its operations. As the outbreak continues to evolve, the Company will continue to closely monitor any
material changes to future economic condition.

2.42 There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period.

2.43 Previous year figures have been audited by a firm of Chartered accountants other than S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP.

As per our report attached of even date
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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Krishna Institute of
Medical Sciences Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries
(Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of such subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2020, its
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the

consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsibility for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group; and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective management and Board of
Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance and respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the
Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our
responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (b) of the section titled ‘Other Matters’
in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Other matter

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019,
included in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 03 July 2019.

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, whose financial statements
include total assets of Rs. 129.25 million as at 31 March 2020, total revenues of Rs. 1.38 million and
net cash inflows of Rs. 0.41 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements. These financial statement and other financial information have been
audited by other auditors, whose financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s
reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on other Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of
subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/ the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and reports of the other auditors;

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss including the
statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the
Act, of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies incorporated
in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 17 to this report;
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(g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March
2020 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India
to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on its consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated Ind AS financial
statements — Refer Note 2.24 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Sd/-

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 20102328AAAACW3501
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020
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Annexure 1 to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Krishna Institute of Medical
Sciences Limited (“the Company™) and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies
Act 203, which are its subsidiary companies, as of 31 March 2020, in conjunction with our audit of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
AS financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act
203, which are its subsidiary companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Sd/-

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 20102328AAAACW3501
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Goodwill on consolidation
Financial assets

(i) Loans

(ii) Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-current tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests
Total Equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Lease liabilities

(iii) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Current lease liability
(iii) Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iv) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Current tax liability (net)
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Significant accounting policies

Note As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

2.1 (a) 7,336.99 7,216.95
2.1 (a) 2232 232
2.1 (b) 576.56 578.28
2.1 (b) 712.63 -
533.58 437.72
22 (a) 47.18 39.81
23 (a) 113 2437
239 14.16 37.97
28 386.58 328.01
24 12948 374.14
9,760.61 9,039.57
25 303.77 268.61
26 1,322.68 1,232.69
27 (a) 405.14 80.63
2.7 (b) 52.13 21.36
22 (b) 1753 15.19
23 (b) 54.26 87.59
29 4278 3243
2,198.29 1,738.50
11,958.90 10,778.07
2.10 (a) 744.90 744.90
2.10 (b) 5.236.35 4,675.26
5,981.25 5,420.16
133.05 273.79
6,114.30 5,693.95
211 2,687.17 2,437.81
225 455.53 -
2.12 (a) 7.10 5.81
213 137.08 101.89
2.17 (a) 12.86 1348
239 356.73 528.09
3,656.47 3,087.08
2.14 101.11 175.53
225 24.00 -
2.15 25.08 1.36
215 1,209.26 1,039.23
2.12 (b) 628.13 49325
2.16 73.47 60.51
2.17 (b) 127.08 131.89
- 9527
2,188.13 1,997.04
11,958.90 10,778.07
13

The accompanying notes are referred above form an integral part of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

Sd/-
per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Managing Director
DIN: 00008985

Sd/-
Vikas Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Sd/-
B Abhinay
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01681273

Sd/-
Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary
Membership no:A21035

100



Krishna Insti of Medical Sci Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Revenue

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total revenue

Expenses

Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed
Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit/(loss) before tax expense

Tax expense

- Current tax

- Deferred tax credit

- Tax pertaining to earlier years

Total tax expense

Profit/ (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement of defined benefit plans

- Income-tax effect

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Profit/ (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive i ble to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

/ (loss) attri

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year

Earnings per share (face value of share Rs. 10 each)
- Basic
- Diluted

Significant accounting policies

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
218 11,226.45 9,180.05
2.19 60.83 57.32
11,287.28 9237.37

220 2,541.68 2,124.64
221 1,980.46 1,630.28
222 399.42 407.96
2.1 706.10 52138
223 425436 4,669.64
9,882.02 9,353.90

1,405.26 (116.53)

239 432.98 386.09

239 (154.79) (41.54)
239 (23.65) 215
25454 346.70

1,150.72 (463.23)

(13.43) (18.84)
3.42 6.64

(10.01) (12.20)

1,140.71 (475.43)

1,191.83 (464.13)
(“41.11) 0.90

1,150.72 (463.23)

(9.59) (12.51)
(0.42) 031

(10.01) (12.20)

1,182.24 (476.64)
(41.53) 121

1,140.71 (475.43)

228 16.00 6.71)
228 15.87 6.71)

13

The accompanying notes are referred above form an integral part of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

Sd/-
per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Krishna Insti of Medi

1 Qci
S

CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Managing Director
DIN: 00008985

Sd/-
Vikas Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Limited

Sd/-
B Abhinay
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01681273

Sd/-
Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary
Membership no:A21035
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

A Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Finance cost
Expected credit loss for trade receivables
Trade receivables written off
Interest income
Net loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss on changes in fair value of financial instruments
Liabilities no longer required written back
Sub lease income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease in other financial assets and other assets
Increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities and provisions
Cash provided by operations
Income taxes paid, net
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment (net)
Payment of purchase consideration for slump sale
Payment for purchase of NCI portion in subsidiary
Sub lease income received
Advance for purchase of shares
Interest received
Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Receipts of long-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings (net)
Payment of lease obligations
Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from issue of share warrants
Finance costs
Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired through business combination
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

1,40526 (116.53)
706.10 52138
399.42 407.96

46.07 179.67
5.68 47.83
(12.63) (5.68)
12.52 1.52
- 87127
(4.54) (20.29)
(7.86) (7.70)

2,550.02 1,879.43
(30.48) (57.36)
(132.06) (315.16)

29.90 67.74
134.34 23.56

2,551.72 1,598.21
(536.72) (314.58)

2,015.00 1,283.63
(519.80) (773.49)

5.13 2.13
(21.68) (70.00)
- (197.27)
(710.34) -

7.86 7.70
- (60.00)

11.05 5.54
146.45 2.54
(170.36) (18.07)

(1,251.69) (1,100.92)

(715.38) (1,874.23)
808.76 1,302.70

(116.47) (250.91)

(90.15) (11.51)
- 880.00
- 3.10

(330.14) (264.13)
(443.38) (214.98)
319.93 (3227)

4.58 3.28
80.63 109.62
405.14 80.63

Note:

a) The consolidated statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (Ind AS 7)-

Statement of cash flows:
b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2029

Cash on hand 24.04 12.56
Balances with banks

- On current accounts 301.10 68.07
- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 80.00 -
Total 405.14 80.63

The accompanying notes are referred above form an integral part of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

Sd/-

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Managing Director
DIN: 00008985

Sd/-
Vikas Maheshwari

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Sd/-
B Abhinay

Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01681273

Sd/-
Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary
Membership no:A21035
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

C lidated of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Other equity
] Equity Reserve and surplus Non-. Total other
Particulars share Securities . . Share Total controlling .
. . Adjustment | Retained . equity
capital premium . warrants interest
reserve earnings
account
Balance as at 01 April 2019 744.90 7,525.80 57.64 [ (2,911.28) 3.10 4,675.26 273.79 4,949.05
Profit for the year - - - 1,191.83 - 1,191.83 (41.11) 1,150.72
Non controlling interest on new subsidiary- refer note no: 2.35 - - - - - - (11.60) (11.60)
A&{quls1t10n of non-controlhpg {nterest in existing sub51diary- R R B (621.15) B (621.15) (87.61) (708.76)
adjustment for non-controlling interest- refer note no: 2.35
Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - - (9.59) - (9.59) (0.42) (10.01)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 744.90 7,525.80 57.64 | (2,350.19) 3.10 5,236.35 133.05 5,369.40
Other equity
. Equity Reserve and surplus NOl'l-. Total other
Particulars share Securities . . Share Total controlling .
. . Adjustment | Retained . equity
capital premium . warrants interest
reserve earnings
account

Balance as at 01 April 2018 501.50 292.98 57.64 | (2,434.64) - (2,084.02) 212.58 (1,871.44)
Loss for the year - - - (464.13) - (464.13) 0.90 (463.23)
Issue of shares 28.65 851.35 - - - 851.35 - 851.35
Issue of share warrants - - - - 3.10 3.10 - 3.10
Conversion of financial liability into equity- Refer note no: 2.38 214.75 6,381.47 - - - 6,381.47 - 6,381.47
Non-controlling interest on new subsidiary - - - - - - 60.00 60.00
Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - - (12.51) - (12.51) 0.31 (12.20)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 744.90 7,525.80 57.64 | (2,911.28) 3.10 4,675.26 273.79 4,949.05

The accompanying notes are referred above form an integral part of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

Sd/-
per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
of Medical Sci

Krishna I

CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Managing Director
DIN: 00008985

Sd/-

Vikas Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Sd/-
B Abhinay

Limited

Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01681273

Sd/-

Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary
Membership no:A21035
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.1  Group Overview

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Krishna Institute of Medical
Sciences Limited (the company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31
March 2020. The company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at
D. No. 1-8-31/1, Minister's Road, Secunderabad, Telangana, India - 500003.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services.

The Company was originally incorporated on 26 July 1973 under the name “Jagjit Singh and Sons
Private Limited” which was subsequently changed to “Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Private
Limited” on 2 January 2004. The Company was converted into a public limited company under the
Companies Act, 1956 on 29 January 2004 and consequently, the name was changed to “Krishna Institute
of Medical Sciences Limited”.

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on 21 July 2020.

1.2 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

a) Statement of compliance:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment)
Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions
of the Act.

b) Basis of measurement:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value or Amortised cost

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees INR, which is also the Group’s
functional currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except
share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

d) Change in accounting policies
New and amended standards

The Group applied Ind AS 116 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of
adoption of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in the current year, but do not have
an impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group. The Group has not early adopted any
standards or amendments that have been issued but not yet effective.

Ind AS 116 — Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-
Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease). The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

Effective 01 April 2019, the Group adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" applied to all lease contracts existing
on 01 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method and elected to measure the Right of-Use
assets at an amount equal to the lease liability as at the date of initial application, on the date of initial
application. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted. On transition, the adoption of new standard resulted in recognition of Right - of - Use asset
(ROU) of Rs. 744.69 and a lease liability of Rs. 482.05 (net off lease payments paid in advance). The
effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit for the year and earning per share.

The Group applied the Standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind
AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. The Group also elected to use the
recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12
months or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which
the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore,
Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.

e) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Group’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.
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The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note 2.39 —
Recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried
forward can be used.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Refer
Note 2.26 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions. The parameter most
subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of
such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to
or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most
relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group.

Classification of financial instruments as equity

The Company has entered into Shareholders agreement (‘SHA”) with private equity (“PE” or the
“Investors™) investors for purchase of equity shares. As per the terms of the SHA, the Company needs
to provide an exit to Investor either through an Initial Public Offering (“IPO”’) or Marketed sale process
based on best afford basis, which is in the control of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has
classified and measured the aforesaid instruments as equity, carried at cost.

f) Current-non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
i.  itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal
operating cycle;
ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
iii. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle;
ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
iv.  the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

g) Fair value measurement:

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
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- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee
and the Group's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the
valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values is included in Note 2.33 — financial instruments.

1.3  Significant accounting policies
A. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

o The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
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Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings
of the other voting rights holders.

e o o o

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until
the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in
preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting
policies. Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting
period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation
purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent
to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable
to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the
acquisition date.

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any
related goodwill.
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<)

d)

e)

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions
that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup
losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits
and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-Controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consist of:

e The amount of equity attributed to non-controlling interests at the date on which investment in
a subsidiary relationship came into existence;

e The non-controlling interest share of equity since the date parent subsidiary relationship came
in existence;

e Non-controlling interest share of net profit/(loss) of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is
identified and adjusted against the profit after tax of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been
prepared on the basis of the financial statements of the following subsidiaries.

Name of the Company Country of | Ownership interest (in %)

incorporation 31 March 31 March
2020 2019

Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited | India 57.83 57.83

(‘AHPL’)

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited | India 75.26 50.27

(‘KHEPL”)

Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences | India 51.00 -

Private Limited (‘ICIMSPL”)

Saveera Intitute of Medical Sciences Private | India 80.00 -

Limited (‘SIMSPL’)

KIMS Hospitals Private Limited (‘KHPL’) | India 100.00 100.00

KIMS Swastha Private Limited (‘KSPL”) India 100.00 100.00

KIMS Cuddles Private Limited (‘KCPL”) India 100.00 100.00

KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private | India 100.00 100.00

Limited (‘KHBPL”)

KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited | India 55.00 -

(‘KHKPL’) (Formerly known as “Kurnool

Rainbow Hospitals Private Limited”)

KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited | India - -

(Closed on 31 March 2019)
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B. Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following
assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

e Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS
19 Employee Benefits respectively.

e  Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the
acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

e Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share — based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments
at the acquisition date.

e  Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss or OCI, as
appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument
and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all
of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in
OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same
through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period
adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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C. Revenue from contract with customer

The Group’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services
and sale of pharmacy items.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Group has applied Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with customers
which establishes a comprehensive framework for revenue recognition. Revenue is recognised upon
transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. When there
is uncertainty on ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services.
The performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery,
medical/clinical professional services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical
and related products.

Revenue is recognised when the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With respect to
the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date, revenue is recognised
to the extent of services rendered. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed
consideration adjusted for discounts, amounts payable to customer in the nature of commissions,
principal versus agent considerations, any other rights and obligations as specified in the contract with
the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers and deposited back to the
respective statutory authorities.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy and food and beverages (other than hospital services), where the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is
transferred to the customer.

Revenue from admission fees, tuition fees and other fees for academic courses are recognised on the
due date for the receipt of fees and apportioned over the academic term on a time proportion basis. Fee
waivers, discounts, rebates provided to students are reduced from fee received. Application procession
fees are recognised as revenue on receipt of the fees.

Contract Balances:

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients
who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance
sheet date.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).
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Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is
recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is
included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

D. Income-tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit
and loss except to the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current income-tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill
related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances
existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax
benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase
gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 is in the nature of unused tax
credit which can be carried forward and utilized when the Group will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Deferred tax assets on such tax credit is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the unused tax credit can be utilized in the specified future period. The net amount of tax recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance
sheet. The Group reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down
the asset to the extent that it is probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
comes to the Group’s notice. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognized within the measurement period
reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and
circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining
deferred tax benefits are recognized in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for
bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realized are recognized in statement of profit or
loss.

E. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at original cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it located.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labor, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located.

When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group de-recognizes the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful life
and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as
incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.
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The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements
upon sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
outstanding as of each reporting date are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant
and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation/Amortisation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets
as estimated by the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic
and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Group has
estimated the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment which
are in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Buildings 60

Medical and surgical equipment 13-14

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has
estimated the useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

e Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

e Leasehold land is in the nature of perpetual lease without any limited useful life and hence is not
amortised.

e Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease or estimated useful life,
whichever is shorter.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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F. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is
derecognised.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to

obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software 6
Brand 5
Non-Compete fee 5
Customer Contract 5
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G. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.

H. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, ifthe contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Impairment ofnon-
financial assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

I. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost or
net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. cost includes cost
of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
The Group follows the weighted average method for determining the cost of such inventories. The
Comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on item by item basis.

J. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account,
if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the
fifth year.
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For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 March and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of
CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods.

K. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is
presented in the consolidated statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
consolidated financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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L. Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If
the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of
a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
its present value. The calculation of Group’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect
of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income (OCI).

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect
of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income (OCI). The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability
(assets) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any
changes to the defined benefit liability (asset) as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. The Group recognises gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.
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Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g, under short term
cash bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
the past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Compensated absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Group, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave during
the calendar year and lapses at the end of the calendar year. Accrual towards compensated absences at
the end of the financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of
the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

M. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The
classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Financial assets at amortised cost

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Group makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.
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Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18 (referred to as contractual revenue receivables’
in these consolidated financial statements).

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted
at the original EIR.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

N. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

O. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for
the year relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity
shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit
per share.
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P. Segment reporting

Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Management
evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and transfers are reflected at market

prices.

Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any
business segment.

Segment Policies:

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the consolidated financial statements of the Group as a whole. Common
allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.

Q. Corporate social responsibility

The Group charges its Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure to the statement of profit and loss.
R. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the

end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the consolidated financial
statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.
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Krishna Insti of Medical Sci

Notes to the C lidated Ind AS fi

for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.1 (b) Other i ible assets
Total Other .
Software Brand Non compete|  Goodwill Customer intangible Right-of -use
. contract Assets
Particulars assets
Cost
Balance as at 1 April 2018 20.94 - - - - 20.94 -
Acquisition through business combinations (refer
N 1.36 13.10 2830 314.17 188.02 544.95 -
note 2.34)
Additions 34.20 - - - - 34.20 -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 56.50 13.10 28.30 314.17 188.02 600.09 -
Balance as at 1 April 2019 56.50 13.10 28.30 314.17 188.02 600.09 -
ACquilthIl through business combinations (refer ; 1214 ; ; 1214 )
note 2.34)
Additions on adoption of Ind AS 116 - - - - - - 772.66
Additions 20.32 - - - - 20.32 26.95
Disposals (1.77) - - - - (1.77) -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 75.05 25.24 28.30 314.17 188.02 630.78 799.61
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2018 7.46 - - - - 7.46 -
Amortisation charge for the year 7.37 1.30 2.81 - 2.87 14.35 -
Disposals - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 14.83 1.30 2.81 - 2.87 21.81 -
Balance as at 1 April 2019 14.83 1.30 2.81 - 2.87 21.81 -
Additions on adoption of Ind AS 116 - - - - - - 2797
Amortisation charge for the year 12.76 5.06 5.68 - 9.03 32.53 59.01
Disposals (0.12) - - - - (0.12) -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 27.47 6.36 8.49 - 11.90 54.22 86.98
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2019 41.67 11.80 25.49 314.17 185.15 578.28 -
At 31 March 2020 47.58 18.88 19.81 314.17 176.12 576.56 712.63

130



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the C lidated Ind AS fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
2.2 Loans (at amortised cost )
(Unsecured, considered good)
(a) Non-current
Security deposits 47.18 39.81
Total 47.18 39.81
(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Security deposits 17.53 15.19
Total 17.53 15.19
2.3 Other financial assets (at amortised cost )
(Unsecured, considered good)
(a) Non-current
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months of reporting date)* 1.04 7.90
Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.09 1.12
Other receivable - 1535
Total 1.13 24.37
* Bank deposits placed are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee
(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) 44.39 74.46
Other receivables - 2.43
Other advances 6.57 -
Interest accrued on bank deposits 3.30 0.69
-To related parties (refer note 2.27)
Advance to related parties - 10.01
(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Other advances 0.32 0.32
Less : Provision for other advances 0.32) (0.32)
Total 54.26 87.59
2.4 Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances* 75.85 249.22
Advance for purchase of shares - 60.00
Balance with government authorities 40.57 49.47
Prepaid expenses 13.06 15.45
Total 129.48 374.14
* Includes a transaction entered between the Company and Dr. B Bhaskara Rao, during the previous year, towards purchase of land for a total consideration Rs. 74.25.
Out of the total consideration, an amount of Rs. 70.00 is paid as an capital advance in previous year. Refer note 2.27.
2.5 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Medical consumables and pharmacy items 303.77 268.61
Total 303.77 268.61
2.6 Trade receivables (at amortised cost ) *

Considered good - Unsecured

Trade receivables 1,322.68 1,232.69
Trade receivables - credit impaired 373.10 326.48
Total receivables 1,695.78 1,559.17
Less: Expected credit loss for trade receivables (373.10) (326.48)
Net trade receivables 1,322.68 1,232.69

* Includes amount receivables from related party amounting to Rs. 2.13 (31 March 2019: Rs. 2.21 ). (Refer note 2.27).

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any trade or other receivable are
due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the C lidated Ind AS fi ial
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise

2.7

©)

2.8
(a)

2.9

Cash and bank balances

a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- in current accounts

for the year ended 31

- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)

b) Other bank balances - Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months *

Total

*The above deposits are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are maturing within 12 months of the reporting date

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

24.04 12.56
301.10 68.07
80.00 -
405.14 80.63
52.13 21.36
52.13 21.36
457.27 101.99

Particulars 1 April 2019 Cash flows Others 31 March 2020
Current borrowings 175.53 (116.47) 42.05 101.11
Lease liabilities 27.09 (90.15) 543.67 480.61
Non- current borrowings (including current maturities) 2,705.44 93.38 307.86 3,106.68
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,908.06 (113.24) 893.58 3,688.40
Particulars 1 April 2018 Cash flows Others 31 March 2019
Current borrowings 305.14 (250.91) 121.30 175.53
Lease liabilities (included in borrowings) 38.60 (11.51) - 27.09
Non- current borrowings (including current maturities)* 2,731.16 (571.53) 545.81 2,705.44
Total liabilities from financing activities 3,074.90 (833.95) 667.11 2,908.06

*Excludes liability component of financial instrument amounting to Rs. 3,995.81, which was converted into equity in previous year (refer note 2.38)

Others in non-current and current borrowings includes effect of amortization cost and borrowings acquired through business combination. Others in lease liabilities
is towards addition of lease liability and interest accurred thereon on adoption of Ind AS 116

Non-current tax assets (net)
Current tax assets (net)
Advance tax [net of provision for taxation]

Advance tax (net of provision for taxation)
Total

Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Staff advances
Other advances
Other receivables
Total

386.58 328.01
386.58 328.01
17.09 10.87
10.28 9.43
15.39 9.19
- 2.92
0.02 0.02
42.78 3243
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the C lidated Ind AS fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.10 (a) Equity share capital As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Authorised
Equity shares
95,000,000 (31 March 2019: 95,000,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 950.00 950.00
950.00 950.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
74,489,552 (31 March 2019: 74,489,552) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 744.90 744.90
744.90 744.90
(a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Number of shares Amount_Number of shares Amount
At the commencement of the year* 74,489,552 744.90 50,149,732 501.50
Add: Conversion of put options to equity shares (refer note 2.38) - - 21,474,864 214.75
Add: Shares issued during the year - - 2,864,956 28.65
Shares ding at the end of the year 74,489,552 744.90 74,489,552 744.90

*As at 31 March 2018, issued equity shares excludes 21,474,864 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid which were classified as financial liability.

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each equity share holder is entitled to one vote per equity share held.In the
event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up
Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holdi
Dr. B Bhaskar Rao 18,304,164 24.57% 18,304,164 24.57%
General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd 31,739,906 42.61% 30,250,115 40.61%
B. Seenaiah 4,582,517 6.15% 4,972,308 6.68%
Bollineni Ramanaiah Memorial Hospitals Private Limited 5,228,628 7.02% 4,800,632 6.44%
(d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the
reporting date
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up allotted as - - - - 61,603,374

bonus shares by capitalisation of securities premium

2.10 (b) Other equity As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Securities premium (refer below note 1)

Balance as per last financial statements 7,525.80 292.98
Add: Tssue of shares - 851.35
Add: Conversion of financial liability into equity (refer note 2.38) - 6,381.47
Closing balance 7,525.80 7,525.80

Adjustment reserve (refer below note 2)

Balance as per last financial statements 57.64 57.64
Movement during the yeat - -
Closing balance 57.64 57.64

Share warrants (refer below note 3)

Balance as per last financial statements 3.10 -
Add: Tssue of share warrants - 3.10
Closing balance 3.10 3.10

Other comprehensive income

Balance as per last financial statements 11.07 23.58
Add: Re-measurement gain / (loss) on employee defined benefit plans (9.59) (12.51)
Closing balance 1.48 11.07

Retained earnings (refer below note 4)

Balance as per last financial statements (2,922.35) (2,458.22)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest in existing subsidiary (refer note no 2.35) (621.15) -
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year 1,191.83 (464.13)
Closing balance (2,351.67) (2,922.35)
5,236.35 4,675.26

1. Securities premium
Securities Premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Adjustment reserve

During the year ended 31 March 2014, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement approved by Honourable High Court of Andhra Pradesh, the Company has
allotted 306,069 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to the Share holders of the transferor Company against 4,455,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each outstanding in the
transferor Company in the ratio of 9 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every 131 equity shares of Rs.10 each of the Transferor Company. The difference of Rs.
41.49 on account of the above share swap has been added to the Adjustment Reserve of the Company as per the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement approved by the High Court, the Company allotted 969,231 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to the shareholders of the
Demerged Company against 2,100,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each outstanding in the Demerged Company in the ratio of 6 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for
every 13 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the Demerged Company. The difference between the consideration payable and the value of net assets taken over as
per the Scheme amounting to Rs. 16.15 has been added to the Adjustment Reserve of the Company as per the Scheme.

3. Share warrants

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement (SSPA) along with General Atlantic
Singapore KH Pte Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor”) and other existing shareholders. In accordance with the aforesaid SSPA,
the Company has issued 3,103,731 numbers of share warrants to Dr B Bhaskara Rao. Each of these share warrants are convertible into 1 equity share of Rs. 10
each at a future date as per the terms of SSPA. As at 31 March 202 and 31 March 2019, the Company has received Rs. 1 each against the share warrants issued
aggregating to Rs. 3.10

4. Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits/losses (net of appropriations) of the company earned till date, including items of other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the C lidated Ind AS fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2020
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2.11

Notes:

vi

viii

Long-term borrowings (at amortised cost )

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Non- current Current Non- current Current
Secured
Term loans from banks
- HDFC Bank equipment loan - 1 (refer note i) 63.21 15.84 79.06 10.94
- HDFC Bank equipment loan - 2 (refer note ii) 10591 937 122.08 11.80
- HDFC Bank vehicle loan - 2 (refer note iii) 3.04 0.67 3.70 0.62
- Federal bank term loan (refer note iv) 625.16 167.74 494.07 66.24
- Federal bank term loans (refer note v and vi) 114.66 18.61 122.80 7.67
- HDFC Bank term loan (refer note vii) 493.44 31.00 495.14 229
- HDFC Bank term loan (refer note viii) 378.03 34.13 - -
- Yes bank term loan (refer note ix) 226.77 - 291.32 19.81
Total loans from banks (A) 2,010.22 277.36 1,608.17 119.37
Term loans from other parties
- Siemens Financial Services Private Limited (refer note x) - - - 16.75
- NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited (refer note xi) 676.95 142.15 819.10 142.05
Total loans from other parties (B) 676.95 142.15 819.10 158.80
Unsecured
Finance lease obligation (refer note xviii) - - 10.54 16.55
Total unsecured loans (C) - - 10.54 16.55
Total (A) + (B) + (C) 2,687.17 419.51 2,437.81 294.72

Refer current maturities of long term borrowings under note 2.12 (b)

Term loan - 1 from HDFC bank towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the medical equipment out of sanctioned facility,
carrying an interest rate of 9.5% p.a. fixed (31 March 2019: 9.5% p.a. fixed). This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instalments starting from July 2017 to
June 2024.

Term loan - 2 from HDFC bank towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the medical equipment out of sanctioned facility,
carrying an interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 0.65%. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr B Bhaskara rao. This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instalments
starting from January 2019 to December 2024

Term loan from HDFC Bank of Rs. 5.03 is secured by first exclusive hypothecation charge on the vehicle acquired from the said loans. The loan carries interest rate
of 8.01% per annum (fixed). These loans are repayable in 84 equated monthly instalments starting from January 2018 to December 2024.

Federal Bank term loan consists of 3 loans (31 March 2019: 2 loans). The first two loans is secured by exclusive charge on existing hospital at Rajahmundry and
personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The new loan is secured by Pari Passu first charge on fixed assets of the Company (excluding Rajahmundry hospital) and
personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao and Dr. B. Abhinay. Also the loans are secured by pledge of minimum 29% shareholding of the KIMS Hospital Private
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. The loan is repayable in 66 equal monthly instalments starting from May 2019 to April 2025 and carries an interest rate
ranging from 9.50% to 9.80% p.a. (31 March 2019: 9.50% to 9.80% p.a).

Federal bank term loan is secured by way of first charge on the medical equipment, other movable assets, building improvements and fixtures of ICIMSPL and
second charge on entire current assets of ICIMSPL. Further, it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Abhinay Bollineni, Dr. Bhaskara Rao, Dr. Sai (Director of
ICIMSPL) and Dr. P. Satish Kumar (Director of ICIMSPL). The loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company. The loan is repayable in 72
equated monthly instalments starting September 2019 and carries an interest rate of 9.50% per annum with annual reset (linked to 1 year MCLR).

Federal bank term loan is secured by way of first charge on medical equipment (minimum 1.19x cover), with 15% margin, of ICIMSPL and second charge on entire
current assets of ICIMSPL. Further, it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Abhinay Bollineni, Dr. Bhaskara Rao, Dr. Sai (Director of ICIMSPL) and Dr. P. Satish
Kumar (Director of ICIMSPL). The loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company. The loan is repayable in 72 equated monthly instalments
starting April 2020 and carries an interest rate of 9.80% per annum with annual reset (linked to 1 year MCLR).

Term loans from HDFC Bank Limited are repayable in equated monthly instalments covering principle and interest for term loans. These loans are for a term of 12
years, with a structured EMI payments for the first 1.5 years and uniform EMI payables for the balance 10.5 years and carries a interest rate of 9.75% floating rate
linked to bank's 1 year MCLR for term loans. The loans are secured by first and exclusive charge on movable and immovable assets, current assets of SIMSPL and
equitable mortgage on the property owned by Veera Kishore Reddy (Director of SIMSPL) situated at Sy no.155, D.No.1-1348, NH 44, Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri
Nagar Colony extension, Near Ayyappa Swamy Temple, Anantapur-515004. Further, the loan is secured by way of Corporate guarantee given by the Company and
personal guarantee given by Mr. Veera Kishore Reddy and Mr. Yelakala Surendra Reddy (Directors of SIMSPL).

Term loan from HDFC Bank is secured by way of equitable mortgage on the property situated at Plot Nos.27 & 28 (part) in Sy.No.931/JIB
931/J12B,931/15B,931/K 1B and 931/K3 of kallur,Johrapuram Road,Kurnool and first and exclusive first charge on movable and immovable assets and current assets
of the Company. Further, the loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited. The loan is repayable in 108
months including 24 months principle moratorium and the last instalment is due in August 2028. The loan carries an interest rate of 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% (spread) per
annum

Yes Bank term loan of Rs. 360 is secured by first exclusive charge on entire movable fixed assets including leasehold improvements, present and future, by way deed
of hypothecation and first exclusive charge on all current assets of KHEPL. Further, the loan is secured by unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantees of Dr.
B. Abhinay, Mrs. CH. Harini (Director of KHEPL) and Mr. S. Sunand (Director of KHEPL) and Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The amount is repayable in 72 monthly
instalments starting from January 2018 to December 2023. The loan carries an interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 1.15% (spread) per annum. The loan is also secured by
corporate guarantee given by the Company. Further, the loan is secured by a charge on the escrow account

Term loan - Siemens Financial Services Private Limited consists of 1 loans (31 March 2019: 1 loans) secured by way of hypothecation of medical and surgical
equipment procured from the said loan and personal guarantee of Dr. B Bhaskara Rao. The loans are repayable in unequal monthly instalments from January 2012 to
July 2019 and carries interests rate ranging from 11% to 13.50% p.a. (31 March 2019 : interests rate ranging from 11 % to 13.50% p.a.).
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2.11 Long-term borrowings (continued)

xi

xii

xiii

Term loan from NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited is secured by a first pari-passu mortgage and charge of immovable properties of the Secunderabad hospital
and Nellore hospital building. Also secured by a first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Secunderabad hospital and Nellore Hospital movable
properties including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of
whatsoever nature excluding the equipment which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans and a second pari-passu mortgage and charge of
immovable properties of the Ongole hospital. Also includes a second pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Ongole hospital movable properties including
movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of whatsoever nature
excluding the equipment's which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans; a second charge on the entire cash flows, receivables, book debts
and revenues of the Company, of whatsoever nature and wherever arising; subject to the prior charge of the working capital lenders. Also secured by personal
guarantee of Dr. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is repayable in 72 equal monthly instalments and carries an interest rate of 9.10% p.a. (31 March 2019: 9.10% p.a.).

Finance lease obligations pertain to medical equipment's taken on finance lease. The lease term of such medical equipment is 5 to 6 years with equated monthly
payments. The same carries an interest rate ranging from 17.18% to 44.44% p.a (31 March 2019: 17.18% to 44.44% p.a.).

The legal title of medical equipment will be transferred to the Company at the end of the lease term of the respective agreements at nominal values. The said
lease arrangement does not contain any contingent rent. From current year, these lease have been classified as per Ind AS 116 - "Leases".

Finance lease obligations

Finance lease obligations are payable as follows:

31 March 2019
Future minimum lease Interest element of MLP  Present value of minimum

payments (MLP) lease payments
Within less than one year 26.23 9.68 16.55
Between one and five years 17.19 6.65 10.54
After more than five years - - -
Total 43.42 16.33 27.09

Aggregate amount of secured loans (including current maturities of long term borrowings) guaranteed by few Directors of the Company is Rs.2,087.32 (31
March 2019: Rs. 2,113.69).
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2.12
(a)

(b)

2.13

2.14

As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Other financial liabilities (at amortized cost)
Non-current
Security deposits 2.83 2.55
Capital creditors 4.27 3.26
Total 7.10 5.81
Current
Current maturity of long term debts (refer note 2.11) 419.51 294.72
Capital creditors 86.25 33.49
Employee benefits payable* 104.74 147.28
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 10.67 8.57
Security and caution deposit 6.64 7.59
Other deposits 0.32 1.60
Total 628.13 493.25
*Includes payables to related parties. For details refer note 2.27
Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity [refer note 2.26] 137.08 101.89
Total 137.08 101.89
Short-term borrowings
Secured
‘Working capital loans from banks [refer note i] 69.21 175.53
Unsecured
Others [refer note iii] 31.90 -
Total 101.11 175.53
Notes

Working capital loans consists of loans from :

a) Andhra bank - Loan is secured by pari passu first charge on entire movable and immovable assets (existing and future assets) of the Company by way of
hypothecation excluding the assets specifically charged to the equipment financers and Rajahmundry unit property and pari passu second charge on entire fixed assets
(existing and future) of the Company. Further, it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr B Bhaskara Rao, Sri B. Krishnaiah, Sri B. Seenaiah and D. Anitha. Loan is
repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 1Y MCLR+1.20% (31 March 2019: 1Y MCLR+1.20%). Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 Rs. Nil (31 March 2019:
Rs. 23.96).

b) Federal bank - Loan is secured by exclusive charge on the current assets of the Rajahmundry Hospital, both current and future. Further it is also secured by exclusive
charge on existing hospital at Rajahmundry and pledge of minimum 29% shareholding of the KIMS Hospital Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Also secured
by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.35% p.a. (31 March 2019: 9.40% p.a). Closing balance as at 31
March 2020 Rs. 20.81 (31 March 2019: Rs. 61.43),

¢) HDFC Bank - Loan is secured by Exclusive charge on the Medical Equipment purchased out the earlier sanctioned Term Loans, First pari passu first charge on current
assets of the Company and second paripassu charge on the properties owned by Company located at (i) D No.1-8-31/1, Sy no.80(old)and Sy No.52,53 (new), Minister
Road, secunderabad-500003, (ii)Sy no.153/3A, North By-pass Road, NHS, Behind Agriculture Market yard, Ongole-523001 and (iii) CAS No.562/1-A, Plot No.2,3,4,5,6
GNT Road, Dargamitta, Nellore. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 1Y
MCLR+1.35%. Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs. Nil)

c) Yes Bank - Working capital loan from Yes Bank of Rs. 40.00 secured by first exclusive charge on entire movable fixed assets including leasehold improvements,
present and future, by way deed of hypothecation and first exclusive charge on all current assets of KHEPL. Further, the loan is secured by unconditional and irrevocable
personal guarantees of Dr. B. Abhinay, Mrs. CH. Harini (Director of KHEPL) and Mr. S. Sunand (Director of KHEPL) and Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is also
secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company aggregating to Rs. 400. Further, the loan is secured by a charge on the escrow account. The loan carries an interest
rate of quarterly MCLR + 2% (spread). Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 Rs. 9.09 (31 March 2019: Rs. 12.52).

d) HDFC Bank - Working capital loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on fixed and current assets of AHPL other than assets exclusively charged to other
equipment financers. It is also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. G. Someswara Rao (Director of AHPL). Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 1
Yr MCLR + 1.85% per annum (31 March 2019: Base rate + 2.75%). Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 is Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs. 10.01)

e) Federal Bank - Working capital loan is secured by first charge on entire current assets of ICIMSPL with a margin of 25% on stock and receivables and second charge
on medical equipment, other movable assets, building improvements and fixtures of ICIMSPL. Further, it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Abhinay Bollineni, Dr
Bhaskara Rao, Dr. Sai (Director of ICIMSPL) and Dr. P Satish Kumar (Director of ICIMSPL). The loan is further secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company.
Loan is repayable on demand and carries an interest rate of 9.50% per annum (linked to 1 year MCLR). Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 Rs. 7.45 (31 March 2019:
Rs. 20.29)

f) HDFC Bank - Working capital loan carries interest rate of 9.95% per annum, linked to 1 year MCLR. The loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on moveable
and immoveable assets, current assets of the SIMSPL and equitable mortgage on the property owned by Veera Kishore Reddy (Director of SIMSPL) situated at Sy
no.155, D.No.1-1348, NH 44, Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri Nagar Colony extension, Near Ayyappa Swamy Temple, Anantapur-515004. Further, the loan is secured by way
of Corporate guarantee given by the Company and personal guarantee given by Mr. Veera Kishore Reddy and Mr. Yelakala Surendra Reddy (Directors of SIMSPL)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 Rs. 11.35 (31 March 2019: Rs. 47.32).

g) Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by way of equitable mortgage on the property situated at Plot Nos.27 & 28 (part) in Sy.No.931/J11B 931/J2B,931/15B,931/K1B and
931/K3 of kallur,Johrapuram Road,Kurmool and first and exclusive first charge on movable and immovable assets and current assets of the Company. Further, the loan is
also secured by corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited. The loan carries an interest rate of 1Y MCLR+ 1.30% (spread) per annum.
Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 is Rs. 20.51 (31 March 2019: Rs. Nil).

Aggregate amount of secured loans guaranteed by few directors of the Company is Rs. 37.34 (31 March 2019: Rs. 118.20)
Unsecured loan taken from other directors and does not carry any interest.
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2.15 Trade payables (at amortized cost)

2.16

2.1

(a

®

=2

)

-

Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 2.30)
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total

The above includes payable to related party. For details refer note 2.27
Trade paybles are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms

Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2.26)
Compensated absences

Total
Other liabilities

Non-current
Deferred income
Total

Current

Statutory dues payable
Contract liabilities
Deferred income
Other liabilities

Total

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

25.08 1.36
1,209.26 1,039.23
1,234.34 1,040.59

229 -
71.18 60.51
73.47 60.51
12.86 13.48

12.86 13.48

68.72 63.98

27.02 40.66

0.64 0.64
30.70 26.61

127.08 131.89
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2.18

A

2.19

ts for the year ended 31 March 2020

Revenue from operations

T

Income from hospital services
Income from pharmacy and others

Total

Other operating income (Refer note 2.31)
Income from academic courses

Income from sale of food and beverages
Other hospital income

Total
Total revenue from operations (A+B)

Other income

Interest income on:
- fixed deposits
- security deposits
- income tax refunds
- Others
Lease income
Liabilities no longer required written back
Sponsorship income
Miscellaneous income

Total

from medical and healthcare services (Refer note 2.31)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

7,339.77 6,036.98
3,697.29 2,970.99
11,037.06 9,007.97
61.57 58.26
115.80 105.07
12.02 8.75
189.39 172.08
11,226.45 9,180.05
498 3.55

1.88 1.13

5.77 1.00

- 0.16

7.86 7.70

4.54 20.29

0.25 1.96
3555 21.53
60.83 57.32
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2.20

22

-

2.22

2.23

Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Closing stock

Total

Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note no 2.26)
Staff welfare expenses

Total

Finance cost

Interest from banks
- term loans
- other loans
Interest on security deposit
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer not no 2.25)
Liability component of financial instruments (refer not no 2.38)
Others

Total

Other expenses

Consultancy charges
House keeping expenses
Power and fuel
Catering and patient welfare expenses
Rent (refer note 2.25)
Tests and investigations
Academic courses expenses
Repairs and maintenance:
- Medical equipment
- Hospital building and others
Printing and stationery
Audit fee (refer note A below)
Legal and professional charges
Rates and taxes
Loss on fair value changes in financial instrument
Travelling and conveyance
Advertisement and publicity
Communication expenses
Provision for doubtful advances
Trade receivable written off’
Expected credit loss for trade receivables
Insurance
Subscriptions and membership fees
Donations (refer note B below)
Contributions towards Corporate Social Responsibility
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment written off
Bank charges
Directors sitting fee
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note A: Payment to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

273.29 201.42
2,572.16 2,191.83
(303.77) (268.61)
2,541.68 2,124.64
1,828.00 1,504.27
127.82 109.31
24.64 16.70
1,980.46 1,630.28
305.93 246.41
26.03 1738
028 0.08
59.29 13.63
- 12001
7.89 1045
399.42 407.96
2,462.53 2,009.92
373.97 32113
242,92 20635
156.48 131.46
49.45 98.30
2538 21.15
1.03 0.83
194.73 175.27
14837 110.74
50.72 45.49
8.23 15.42
66.70 119.46
67.16 62.55
- 871.27
46.72 36.84
11301 106.62
18.10 13.98
- (1.18)
5.68 47.83
46.07 180.85
822 537
6.87 427
51.17 1.65
1634 10.14
1252 1.52
- 0.10
44.92 36.55
131 1.84
3576 33.92
4,254.36 4,669.64

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019*

Statutory audit fee
Fees paid to erstwhile auditor in the capacity of Statutory auditor*
Other services **

Out of pocket expenses

6.05
2.00

0.18

5.40

9.82
0.20

* Paid to erstwhile statutory auditors
** Paid for services related to initial public offering

Note B: Donations
Donations includes subscription to electoral bonds of Rs. 50 (31 March 2019: Rs. Nil)
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2.24

Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) _Conti liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
i)  Luxury tax matters in dispute 82.27 82.27
i)  Service tax matters in dispute 0.09 31.72
iii) VAT matters in dispute 1.76 1.76
iv) Medical claims (gross, excluding interest/costs) 100.68 88.38
v)  Other claims 23.76 23.76

vi) The Company has obtained a stay from High Court for the state of Andhra Pradesh, dated 11 November 2014, directing the local authorities not
to proceed with the acquisition of part of the building in Nellore for the purpose of road widening. No provision thereof has been made in the
Consoidated Ind AS financials statements.

viii) An individual has filed a consumer case at National Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission against the Company along with 3 other hospitals
demanding a total compensation of Rs 235.01 (31 March 2019: Rs. 235.01) along with a further interest @ 18% p.a towards medical negligence.
Based on the legal opinion obtained by the company and the internal evaluation by the management, the Company believes that it has strong case
in this regard and there shall not be any outflow of resources. No provision thereof has been made in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statement.

ix) On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining which|
components of their employee's compensation are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution obligations,
for Provident Fund contributions under Indian law. There are interpretative issues relating to the restrospective applicability of the judgement.
However, from the current year, the Company has complied with the aforesaid Supreme court's judgement. The Company will evaluate the same
and update its position for earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the subject.

Notes:
1. Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash flow, if any, in respect of
the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

ii. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed
as contingent liabilities where applicable in its standalone financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceeding to have
a materially adverse effect on its financial position.

(b) Commitments

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019|
I) Capital commitment
i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 66.36 201.70

provided for (net of advances)

II) Other commitments
i) During the previous year, the Company has acquired 80% shareholding in Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited ('SIMSPL'). As|
per the shareholder's agreement, the Company agreed to transfer 3.5% of the equity shares of SIMSPL to the minority shareholders of SIMSPL
subject to fulfillment of certain conditions.
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2.25 Lease

a)

b)

Operating leases in the capacity of lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, building and medical equipment used in its operations. Leases of building , plant and machinery generally
have lease terms between 3 and 15 years. The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. There are several lease
contracts that include extension and termination options.

The Group has one perpetual leasehold land which is not amortized, all other lease hold land are amortized as per the lease term.
Leases of buildings and machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’

and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Group’s busi needs. M lent exercises significant judgement in determining whether these
extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Land Buildi Medical equi t Total
As at 31 March 2019 - - - -
Addition on adoption of Ind AS 116 (net) 274.37 455.86 14.46 744.69
Additions - 26.95 - 26.95
Amortization expense 292 46.68 9.41 59.01
As at 31 March 2020 271.45 436.13 5.05 712.63
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening Balance - -
Addition on adoption of Ind AS 116 483.44 -
Additions 26.95 -
Accretion of interest 59.29 -
Payments (90.15) -
As at 31 March 479.53 -
Current 24.00 -
Non-current 455.53 -
The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss:
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Amortization expense of right-of-use assets 59.01 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 59.29 -
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets (included in other expenses) 49.45 98.30
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 167.75 98.30

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 139.60 in 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: Rs. 98.30). The Group also had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of Rs. 26.95 in 31 March 2020.

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination options that are
not included in the lease term:

As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Within less than one year 76.11 -
Between one and five years 372.79 -
After more than five years 363.17 -
Total 812.07 -

Operating lease in the capacity of lessor
The Group has given certain part of property, plant and equipment on cancellable leases to various parties. The rental income earned from such leases recognised
in other income is Rs. 7.86 (31 March 2019: Rs. 7.70).
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2.26
(@)

Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provide gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of
continuous services, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed services at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by
trust formed for this purpose and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Group's obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined
benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Group accrues
gratuity as per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date.

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in
the Group's Consolidated balance sheet as at reporting date:
As at As at|
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Present value of defined benefit obligation 168.00 124.76
Fair value of plan assets 28.63 22.87
Net funded obligation 139.37 101.89
Total employee benefit liability 139.37 101.89
Non-current 137.08 101.89
Current 2.29 -
B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit obligation and its components.
i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at As at|
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Defined benefit obligation as at 1 April 124.76 84.58
Benefits paid (1.43) (2.95)
Current service cost 23.19 18.63
Interest cost 8.56 6.20
Actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in other comprehensive income due to:
- Changes in financial assumptions 13.98 12.05
- Changes in demographic assumptions (0.79) 6.43
- experience changes (0.30) (0.18)
- due to other reason 0.03 -
Defined benefit oblig: as at 31 March 168.00 124.76
ii) Reconciliation to fair value of plan assets
Particulars As at As at|
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Plan assets at beginning of the year 22.87 20.29
Contributions paid into the plan 6.54 4.78
Interest income 1.17 1.55
Benefits paid (1.44) (3.20)
Return on plan assets (0.51) (0.55)
Plan assets at end of the year 28.63 22.87
Net defined benefit liability 139.37 101.89

C i) Expenses r d in the lidated of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Current service cost 23.19 18.63
Interest on defined benefit obligation / plan assets (net) 7.39 4.65
Net gratuity cost, included in 'employee benefits expense' 30.58 23.28

ii) R ts 1 d in other comprehensive income (OCI)

S

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Actuarial (gain) / loss on net defined benefit obligation 12.92 18.30
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.51 0.55
D Plan assets
Plan assets comprises of the following:
As at As at|
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fund managed by Insurer 28.63 22.87
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2.26 Employee benefits (continued)

U]

(ii)

Defined benefit plan (: inued)

E Defined benefit obligation
i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Principal actuarial pti As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate 5.85% 7.50%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%

F Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at As at|
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1st following year 28.54 21.59
Year 2 to 5 81.11 62.86
Year 6 to 9 53.92 45.50
Year 10 and above 90.03 88.75

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of
Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into accounts the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

i) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amounts shown below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the year ended 31 March 2019
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) (5.80) 14.28 (7.08) 7.90

Salary escalation rate (1% movement) 13.63 (5.46) 7.61 (7.00)

Although, the analysis does not take account the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumption shown

Defined contribution plan

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss towards
i) Provident fund 66.94 50.68
ii) Employee state insurance 30.30 36.57
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2.27

Related party disclosures

and name of related parties

(a) Nature of relationship
Nature of relati i

Name of related parties

Key Management personnel (KMP)

Dr. B Bhaskara Rao - Managing Director

Dr. B Abhinay- Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f 03 July 2019)
Mr. Uma Shankar Mantha - Company secretary

Mr. Vikas Maheshwari - Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha -Whole-time Director

Directors of the Company

Mr. B Krishnaiah - Chairman (resigned on 18 January 2019)
Mr G Rajeswara Rao

Mrs Jyothi Prasad

Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik (w.e.f20 June 2018)

Mr. Shantanu Rastogi (w.e.f 20 June 2018)

Mr K Padmanaabhaiah (resigned w.e.f. 20 June 2018)

Mr Amitabha Guha (resigned w.e.f. 18 January 2019)

Relative of KMP

Dr. Raavi Swetha- Daughter in law of Managing Director

Enterprises under control or joint control of
KMP and other relative (where transaction exists)

Sri Viswa Medicare Limited
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre

Enterprise having significant influence over the Group

India Advantage Fund S31 (until 20 June 2018)
General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd (w.e.f. 20 June 2018)

(b) Transactions with related parties

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
'31 March 2020 31 March 2019

i Professional fee to KMP

Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Dr. Raavi Swetha

ii. Professional fee to relative of KMP
Dr. Raavi Swetha

iii Rent expenses
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao

iv. Managerial remuneration to KMP *
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Mr. B Abhinay
Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha
Mr. Vikas Maheshwari
Mr. Uma Shankar Mantha

v. Directors sitting fee
Mr B Krishnaiah
Mr G Rajeswara Rao
Mrs Jyothi Prasad
Mr K Padmanaabhaiah
Mr Amitabha Guha

vi. Loans and advances given
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre

vii. Refund of loans and advances
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre

viii. Payment for purchase of land
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao

ix. Expenditure towards CSR
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre

X. Interest expense
India Advantage Fund

Xi. Fair value changes in financial instrument
India Advantage Fund

xii. Derecognition of financial liability
India Advantage Fund

xiii. Issue of equity shares including share premium
General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd

Xiv. Cash received for issue of share warrants
Dr B Bhaskara Rao

18.00

24.00
7.75
3.60
7.37
1.98

0.64
0.58

10.01

425

15.72

18.00
231

1.80

0.29

5.00

70.00

10.14

120.01

871.27

6,596.22

880.00

3.10
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2.2

Related party disclosures (continued)

(c) The balances receivables from and payable to related parties
Particulars As at As at|
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
i. Trade receivables
Sri Viswa Medicare Limited 2.13 221
ii. Other advances
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre - 10.01
iii Capital advance
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao - 70.00
iv. Trade payables
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao 0.10 1.36
Dr. Raavi Swetha 0.16 0.14
V. Employee benefits payable
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao - 1.16
Mr. B Abhinay 0.32 0.47
Mr. Vikas Maheshwari** 0.31 0.00
Uma Shankar Mantha 0.12 0.11
Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha 0.16 0.14
(d) For certain loan availed by the Group, few Directors of the Company have given personal guarantee. Refer note 2.11 and 2.14 for details.

* The managerial personnel are covered by the Group's gratuity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees of the Group. The
proportionate amount of gratuity and leave encashment pertaining to the managerial personnel has not been included in the aforementioned disclosures as

these are determined on an actuarial basis for the Group as a whole.

** The amount is below rounding off norms adopted by Company.

Terms and conditions:

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
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2.28

2.30

Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Earnings

Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to equity shareholders 1,191.83 (464.13)

Shares

Number of shares at the beginning of the year 74,489,552 50,149,732

Add: Conversion of put options to equity shares - 21,474,864

Add: Equity shares issued during the period - 2,864,956

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 74,489,552 74,489,552

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period 74,489,552 69,154,797

Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of issue of share warrant that have dilutive 594,936 548,813.00

effect on EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period - Diluted 75,084,488 69,703,610

Earnings per share of par value Rs. 10 - Basic (Rs.) 16.00 (6.71)

Earnings per share of par value Rs. 10 - Diluted (Rs.)* 15.87 (6.71)

*For the year ended 31 March 2019, the share warrants are anti dilutive in nature and hence basic and dilutive EPS are same.

Segment information

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments
and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108,
Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM
evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Group’s sole operating segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare
Services’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the consolidated financial
statements.

Further the business operation of the Group are concentrated in India, and hence, the Group is considered to operate only in one geographical segment.

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 has been made in the consolidated financial statements
based on information received and available with the Group. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in
accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("The MSMED Act') is not expected to be material. The
Group has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

] As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of the year
- Principal 25.08 1.36

- Interest -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium|
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which h has
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such - -
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose off
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.
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2.31 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Income from hospital services 7,339.77 6,036.98

Income from pharmacy 3,697.29 2,970.99

Total revenue from contracts with customers 11,037.06 9,007.97

India 11,037.06 9,007.97

Outside India - -

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over time 7,339.77 6,036.98

Goods transferred at a point of time 3,697.29 2,970.99

Total revenue from contracts with customers 11,037.06 9,007.97

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

Contract price 11,808.20 9,744.65

Less: Discounts and disallowances (724.12) (645.65)
Less: Others (47.02) (91.03)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 11,037.06 9,007.97

Contract balances

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Trade receivables
Contract assets
Contract liabilities

1,322.68
44.39
27.02

1,232.69
74.46
40.66

Contract liability: During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has recognised revenue of Rs. 74.46 from advance receivied from
patients outstanding as on 31 March 2019. During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 62.51 from

advance receivied from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2018.

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has transferred Rs. 40.66 of contract assets as at 31 March 2019 to trade
receivables on completion of performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the company has transferred Rs. 45.65 of
contract assets as at 31 March 2018 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.
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2.32 Capital management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the 'adjusted net debt' to 'total equity' ratio.

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity

excluding capital contribution.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 was as follows:

Particulars As at As at|
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Total borrowings 3,207.79 2.,908.06
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (405.14) (80.63)
Adjusted net debt 2,802.65 2,827.43
Total equity 6,114.30 5,693.95
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 0.46 0.50
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2.33 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets — Financial Financial Total carrying | Fair value level
amortised cost liabilities - liabilities - amount
Financial assets not measured at fair value (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 1,322.68 - - 1,322.68 -
Cash and cash equivalents 405.14 - - 405.14 -
Bank balances other than above 52.13 - - 52.13 -
Loans 64.71 - - 64.71 -
Other financial assets 55.39 - - 55.39 -
Total 1,900.05 - - 1,900.05 -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value (Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) - - 2,687.17 2,687.17 -
Lease liabilities 479.53 479.53 -
Short-term borrowings - - 101.11 101.11 -
Trade payables - - 1,234.34 1,234.34 -
Other financial liabilities - - 635.23 635.23 -
Total - - 5,137.38 5,137.38 -

As at 31 March 2019

Financial assets — Financial Financial Total carrying Fair value level
amortised cost liabilities - liabilities - amount

Financial assets not measured at fair value (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 1,232.69 - - 1,232.69 -
Cash and cash equivalents 80.63 - - 80.63 -
Bank balances other than above 21.36 - - 21.36 -
Loans 55.00 - - 55.00 -
Other financial assets 111.96 - - 111.96 -
Total 1,501.64 - - 1,501.64 -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value (Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) - - 2,437.81 2,437.81 -
Short-term borrowings - - 175.53 175.53 -
Trade payables - - 1,040.59 1,040.59 -
Other financial liabilities - - 499.06 499.06 -
Total - - 4,152.99 4,152.99 -

Note: The Group has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as short-term trade receivables or short-term trade payables because their carrying
amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.

B. Financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Risk management framework

The Group's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Board of Directors has
established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The committee reports
regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Group’s activities. The Group,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all the employees
understand their roles and obligations.
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2.33 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises
principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other
financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from the trade
receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Group establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the past and the
recent collection trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 1,695.78 as on 31 March 2020
(31 March 2019 : Rs. 1,559.17). The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

Allowance for credit losses As at As at|

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance 326.48 145.52
Credit loss added / (reversed) 46.07 180.96
Closing Balance 372.55 326.48

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Group generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2020:

Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year 1 -5 years More than S years Total

Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) 2,687.17 41951 2,372.92 330.51 3,122.94
Lease liabilities 47953 24.00 45553 479.53
Short-term borrowings 101.11 101.11 - - 101.11
Trade payables 1,234.34 1,234.34 - - 1,234.34
Other financial liabilities 635.23 628.13 4.27 2.83 635.23
Total 5,137.38 2,407.09 2,832.72 333.34 5,573.15

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2019:

Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year 1 -5 years More than S years Total

Long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 2,732.53 294.72 1,661.20 781.51 2,737.43
Short-term borrowings 175.53 175.53 - - 175.53
Trade payables 1,040.59 1,040.59 - - 1,040.59
Other financial liabilities 204.34 198.53 4.65 1.16 204.34
Total 4,152.99 1,709.37 1,665.85 782.67 4,157.89

The Group has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Group to repay the loan earlier than indicated in the
above table.

C. Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate ch at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Variable rate long term borrowings (including current maturities) and short term borrowings 3,175.89 2,722.59
Total borrowings 3,175.89 2,722.59
(i) Sensitivity
Impact on profit or loss Impact on equity, net of tax

Particulars As at31 March  As at31 March  As at31 March  As at 31 March

2020 2019 2020 2019
Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR (31.76) (27.23) (20.66) (17.71)
1% decrease in MCLR 31.76 27.23 20.66 17.71

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loans from banks.

D. Currency risk
The Group is not exposed to currency risk.
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2.34 Business combination

L Acquisition by the C

(i) Acquisition of shares of KIMS Hospitals Enterprise Private Limited

The Company has increased its stake in KIMS Hospitals Enterprise Private Limited from 50.27 % to 75.26% through secondary purchase of 6,134,434
equity shares from existing shareholders in three tranches for a total amount of Rs. 710.34. In the first two tranche 4,357,021 shares were purchased at
Rs.110 (premium of Rs. 100) per share and in the third tranche 1,777,413 shares were purchased at Rs.130 (premium of Rs.120) per share. This has
resulted in reduction of non controlling interest and other equity amounting to Rs. 87.6 and Rs. 621.15 respectively.

(ii) Acquisition of shares of KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited

On 01 April 2019, the Group acquired 55% of the voting shares of KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited (formerly known as Kurnool Rainbow
Hospitals private Limited)("KHKPL") giving it the control of KHKPL.
Since the date of acquisition, KHKPL has generated revenue of Rs. 408.18 and total comprehensive loss of Rs. 93.07.

A. Consideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred :

Particulars Amount
Cash 81.68

B. Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition (to the extent of Group share)

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 190.08
Intangible assets 6.68
Current and non current assets 13.81
Deferred tax liability (1.83)
Current and non current liabilities (36.30)
Total assets 172.43
Debt 186.62
Total liabilities 186.62
Total net identifiable assets acquired (14.18)

The fair value of above acquired assets and liabilities were determined by a registered valuer. This fair value was estimated by applying an income
approach. The following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair value:

Weighted-Average Required Return on Assets (WARA) 15.60%
Implied Internal Rate of Return (IRR) 20.43%
Weighted-Average Cost of Capital (WACC) 15.60%

C. Goodwill arising on acquisition

Consideration transferred 81.68
Fair value of net identifiable assets 14.18
Goodwill 95.86

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of KHKPL because the cost of combination included a control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue growth due to existing customer contract, future market
development and assembled workforce of KHKPL.

(iii) Acquisition of shares of Saveera Insti of Medical Sci Private Limited

On 05 September 2018, the Company entered into a share purchase agreement with the existing shareholders of Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences
Private Limited ('SIMSPL) to acquire 80% equity shares at a total consideration of Rs. 0.08 million at face value per share giving it control over SIMSPL.

The Company has acquired the shares of SIMSPL at face value per share of Rs. 10 each. There were no identifiable assets and liabilities on the date of
acquisition. Hence, no Goodwill is recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Company on account of the acquisition of SIMSPL.
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2.34 Busi bination (continued)

(vi) Acquisition of shares of Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

On 05 May 2018, the Group acquired 51 percent of the voting shares of Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited ("ICIMSPL") giving it
control of ICIMSPL.

Control over ICIMSPL is expected to provide the Group with an increased share to the healthcare market through access to ICIMSPL's customer base.

A. Consideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred :

Cash 70.00

B. Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

Intangible assets 95.94
Total assets 95.94
Deferred tax liabilities 33.51
Total liabilities 33.51
Total net identifiable assets acquired 62.43

The fair value of above acquired assets and liabilities were determined by a registered valuer. This fair value was estimated by applying an income
approach. The following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair value:

Weighted-Average Required Return on Assets (WARA) 16.40%
Implied Internal Rate of Return (IRR) 15.00%
Weighted-Average Cost of Capital (WACC) 15.20%

C. Goodwill arising on acquisition

Consideration transferred 70.00
Fair value of pre-existing equity interest -

Fair value of net identifiable assets (62.43)
Goodwill 7.57

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of ICIMSPL because the cost of combination included a control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue growth due to existing customer contract, future market
development and assembled workforce of ICIMSPL.
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234 Busi bination (continued)
IL Acquisition by the Subsidiaries

(i) Acquisition by Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited ('ICIMSPL')
On 08 May 2018, ICIMSPL acquired assets and liabilities under slump sale from Iconkrishi Hospitals Private Limited ("ICHPL").

A. Consideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred :

Cash -

B. Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

Property, plant and equipment 50.11
Other non-current assets and loans and advances 29.57
Net working capital (18.99)
Total assets 60.69
Debts 116.67
Total liabilities 116.67
Total net identifiable assets acquired (55.98)

The fair value of above acquired assets and liabilities were determined by a valuer. This fair value was estimated by applying an income approach. The
following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair value:

Weighted-Average Cost of Capital (WACC) 15.20%
C. Goodwill arising on acquisiti

Consideration transferred -
Fair value of net identifiable assets/ (liabilities) (55.98)
Goodwill 55.98

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of ICHPL because the cost of combination included a control premium. The goodwill is attributable mainly to the skills
and technical work force and the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating ICHPL's business into the ICIMSPL's business.

(ii) Acquisition by Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited ("SIMSPL')

SIMSPL through a business transfer agreement, purchased the hospital and healthcare division of Saveera Hospitals Private Limited ('SHPL') under slump
sale on 25 September 2018 for a purchase consideration of Rs. 197.27 on a going concern basis with effect from 01 October 2018. Accordingly, an amount
of Rs. 258.19 being the excess of purchase consideration over the net value of the assets acquired (based on a valuation report) has been recognised as
Goodwill on acquisition. The details of purchase price allocation is as follows:

Particulars

Total Assets

Property, plant and equipment 489.00

Other non-current assets and loans and advances 64.19

Net working capital (43.89)
509.30

Total Liabilities

Borrowings 529.55

Deferred tax liabilities 40.67
570.22

Net Assets (60.92)

Less: Purchase consideration (197.27)

Goodwill on acquisiti 258.19

The fair value of above acquired assets and liabilities were determined by a valuer. This fair value was estimated by applying an income approach. The
following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair value:

Weighted-Average Cost of Capital (WACC) 16.4%
Weighted-Average required renturn on assets 17.3%
Implied internal rate of return 16.6%
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2.35 Non-controlling interest

The following table summarises the financial information relating to each of the Group's subsidiaries that has material NCI, before

Arunodaya Iconkrishi Institute KIMS Hospital Saveera Institute KIMS Hospitals
As at 31 March 2020 Hospitals Private  of Medical Sciences Enterprises Private of Medical Sciences  Kurnool Private
Limited Private Limited Limited Private Limited Limited
NCI Percentage 42.17% 49.00% 24.74% 20.00% 45.00%
Non-current assets 193.42 24780 1,151.43 886.98 488.60
Current assets 114.01 8743 156.79 12475 3843
Non-current liabilities (13.52) (202.13) (659.32) (558.85) (426.24)
Current liabilities (65.16) (181.86) (172.17) (188.21) (228.39)
Net Assets 228.76 (48.76) 476.73 264.66 (127.60)
96.47 (23.89) 117.93 52.93 (57.42)
Bu.smess combmatloq anfl other } 12.56 (2.9) (65.72) 315
adjustment on consolidation
Net Assets attributable to NCI 96.47 (11.33) 114.97 (12.79) (54.27)
Revenue 393.47 559.43 1,422.43 585.10 409.83
Profit 3942 (81.58) 114.56 (31.04) (93.26)
Other comprehensive income ('OCI') (1.29) 0.10 (0.35) 0.38 0.19
Total comprehensive income 38.13 (81.48) 114.21 (30.66) (93.07)
Profit allocated to NCI 16.62 (39.97) 28.34 (6.21) (41.97)
OCI allocated to NCI (0.54) 0.05 (0.09) 0.08 0.08
Business combination and other
adjustment on consolidation (0.10) 2.97 - - (0.79)
Total comprehensive income
allocated to NCI 15.98 (36.95) 28.25 (6.13) (42.68)
Cash flows attributable to NCI
Cash flow from operating activities 27.58 0.50 70.84 11.70 9.09
Cash flow from investing activities (4.42) (9.23) (12.76) (7.66) (69.97)
Cash flow from financing activities (5.84) 8.02 (56.66) 4.79) 59.06
Net increase / (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents 17.31 (0.71) 1.42 (0.74) (1.83)
Arunodaya Iconkrishi Institute ~ KIMS Hospital Saveera Institute
Hospitals Private  of Medical Sciences Enterprises Private of Medical Sciences
As at 31 March 2019
s at 31 Marc Limited Private Limited Limited Private Limited
NCI Percentage 42.17% 49.00% 49.73% 20.00%
Non-current assets 205.97 257.97 729.42 888.14
Current assets 72.40 83.98 112.49 99.60
Non-current liabilities (10.47) (137.92) (316.50) (526.88)
Current liabilities (77.27) (171.56) (159.70) (186.19)
Net Assets 190.63 3247 365.71 274.67
80.39 1591 181.87 54.93
Bu.smess combmatloq an§ other 13.96 (7.70) (65.57)
adjustment on consolidation
Net Assets attributable to NCI 80.39 29.87 174.17 (10.64)
Revenue 357.90 358.70 1,177.31 228.00
Profit 34.11 (71.01) 55.17 (33.38)
Other comprehensive income ('OCI') 0.59 - 0.13 -
Total comprehensive income 34.70 (71.01) 55.30 (33.38)
Profit allocated to NCI 14.38 (34.79) 27.43 (6.68)
OCT allocated to NCI 0.25 - 0.06 -
Business combination and other
. o 0.55 - - -
adjustment on consolidation
Total comprehensive income
allocated to NCI 15.18 (34.79) 27.49 (6.68)
Cash flows attributable to NCI
Cash flow from operating activities 2437 (31.81) 87.57 (9.35)
Cash flow from investing activities (26.78) (52.66) (33.61) (14.02)
Cash flow from financing activities (1.49) 80.21 (55.80) 2427
Net increase / (decrease) in cash (3.90) (4.26) (1.84) 0.90

and cash equivalents

154



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Notes to the C lidated Ind AS fi ial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.36 Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements:

31 March 2020

Name of the entity Net Assets (i.e. total Share in profit or (loss) Share in Other Total
assets minus total Comprehensive Income
liabilities)
As % of As % of
As % of As 0‘.' of consolidated consolidated
consolidated Amount consolidate Amount other Amount total Amount
d profit and . .
net assets loss com.prehenswe com.prehenswe
income income
Parent
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 102.08%  6,241.30 105.24% 1,211.06 90.31% (9.04) 105.37% 1,202.02
Subsidiary
Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited 3.74% 228.79 1.98% 22.80 7.3% (0.74) 1.93% 22.06
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited 2.01% 122.64 -1.02% (11.72) 0.00% - -1.03% (11.72)
KIMS Swastha Private Limited -0.03% (1.92) -0.05% (0.52) 0.00% - -0.05% (0.52)
KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 0.00% 0.26 -0.01% (0.07) 0.00% - -0.01% (0.07)
KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 0.00% 0.08 0.00% (0.01) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.01)
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 7.80% 476.70 7.49% 86.22 2.60% (0.26) 7.54% 85.96
Iconkrishi Institue Of Medical Sciences Private Limited -0.80% (48.77) -3.62% (41.60) -0.50% 0.05 -3.64% (41.55)
Saveera Institue Of Medical Sciences Private Limited 4.33% 264.67 -2.16% (24.83) -3.00% 0.30 -2.15% (24.53)
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited -1.88%  (115.07) -4.46% (51.29) -1.00% 0.10 -4.49% (51.19)
Non-controlling interests in all subsidiaries 2.18% 133.05 -3.57% (41.11) 4.20% (0.42) -3.64% (41.53)
Eliminations -19.42% (1,187.43) 0.16% 1.79 0.00% - 0.16% 1.79
Total 100.00%  6,114.30 100.00% 1,150.72 100.00% (10.01) 100.00% 1,140.71

31 March 2019

Net Assets (i.e. total

Share in Other

Name of the entity assets minus total Share in profit or (loss) . Total
liabilities) Comprehensive Income
As % of As % of
o,
As % of c;:ssofi) d':;e consolidated consolidated
consolidated Amount d profit and Amount other Amount total Amount
net assets P loss comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Parent
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 88.50%  5,039.28 94.24% (436.55) 105.82% (12.91) 94.51% (449.46)
Subsidiary
Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited 3.35% 190.66 -4.26% 19.73 -2.79% 0.34 -4.22% 20.07
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited -0.48% (27.39) 2.28% (10.57) 0.00% - 2.22% (10.57)
KIMS Swastha Private Limited -0.02% (1.40) 0.11% (0.52) 0.00% - 0.11% (0.52)
KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 0.01% 0.33 0.00% 0.01 0.00% - 0.00% 0.01
KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited 0.00% - 0.02% (0.08) 0.00% - 0.02% (0.08)
KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 0.00% 0.09 0.00% (0.01) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.01)
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 6.43% 366.30 -5.99% 27.73 -0.49% 0.06 -5.85% 27.79
Saveera Institue Of Medical Sciences Private Limited 4.82% 274.68 5.76% (26.70) 0.00% - 5.62% (26.70)
Iconkrishi Institue Of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.57% 32.48 7.82% (36.21) 0.00% - 7.62% (36.21)
Non-controlling interests in all subsidiaries 4.81% 273.79 -0.19% 0.90 -2.54% 0.31 -0.26% 1.21
Eliminations -7.99% (454.87) 0.21% (0.96) 0.00% - 0.23% (0.96)
Total 100.00%  5,693.95 100.00% (463.23) 100.00% (12.20) 100.00% (475.43)
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2.37

Income tax
a. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

For the year  For the year

ended 31 ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
Current tax 432.98 386.09

Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences (154.79) (41.54)
Taxes for earlier years (23.65) 2.15
Tax expenses for the year 254.54 346.70

b. Amount recognised in other comprehensive incmoe

For the year ended 31 March 2020

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Tax Tax
Before tax (expense)/ Net of tax Before tax (expense)/ Net of tax
benefit benefit

Re-measurement on defined benefit plans (13.43) 342 (10.01) (18.84) 6.64 (12.20)
c. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year  For the year

ended 31 ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
Profit before tax 1,405.26 (116.53)
Enacted tax rates 25.168% 34.944%
Tax expense at enacted rates 416.61 (40.72)
Adjustment in respect of income-tax for earlier years (23.65) 2.15
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating taxable income
Non-deductible expenses 8.57 349.64
Impact of change in rate of tax (124.27) (2.94)
(Reversal)/ recognition of tax losses (22.28) 26.71
Others (0.44) 11.86
Total 254.54 346.70
d. Recongnition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following
Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March 2020 March 2019
Deferred tax asset
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 88.53 11493
Provision for employee benefits 61.47 67.67
Tax losses carried forward - 52.48|
Excess of depreciation on the fixed assets under Companies Act over depreciation under income-tax act, 1961 417 5.46
Others 36.80 39.73
Total deferred tax asset 190.97 280.27|
Deferred tax liability
Expenses of depreciation on the fixed assets under income-tax, 1961 over depreciation under Companies Act. 531.47 767.92
Others 2.07 2.47
Total deferred tax liability 533.54 770.39
Deferred tax asset (342.57) (490.12),
Net deferred tax liabilities (356.73) (528.09)
Net deferred tax asset 14.16 37.97

(ii) Movement in tem porary differences

Particulars

Balance as

Recognised in
profit or loss

Recognised in Balance as at

Recognised in
profit or loss

Recognised in

Balance as at

at 1 April . OCI during 31 March . OCI during 31 March

2018 d“"“fgzms' 2018-19 2019 d“"“fozmg' 201920 2020
Provision for impairment on receivables 50.97 63.96 - 114.93 (26.41) - 88.53
Provision for employee benefits 47.38 13.65 6.64 67.67 (9.62) 3.42 61.47
Others items - assets 15.47 24.26 - 39.73 (2.92) - 36.80
Tax losses carried forward 66.93 (14.45) - 5248 (52.48) - -
Excess of depreciation on the fixed assets under Companies
Act over depreciation under income-tax act, 1961 4.90 0.56 - 5.46 (1.29) h 417
Expenses of depreciation on the fixed assets under income- p 156,76 267.92 236.45 31.47
tax, 1961 over depreciation under Companies Act. (611.16) (156.76) - ( ) - : ( )
Others items - liability (6.44) 397 - (2.47) 0.39 - (2.07),

(431.95) (64.81) 6.64 (490.12) 14413 3.42 (342.57)
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2.38

2.39

2.40

2.42

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Krishna Insti of Medical Sci Limited
Notes to the C lidated Ind AS fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement (SSPA) along with General Atlantic Singapore
KH Pte Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor”) and other existing shareholders through which new investor have purchased few shares from
the existing shareholders and entire shares from the old investor. The terms of the contract with the new investor had resulted in de-recognition of the existing liability by
Rs. 5,604.94 (as at 31 March 2018) and recognition of the same in equity share capital and securities premium.

Apart from the exit to the old investor, the new investor has also infused an amount of Rs. 880 in the form of 2,864,956 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each, fully
paid up at the premium of Rs. 297.16 per share in the Company.

Due to the said financial liability, the Company has recognised loss on fair value changes in financial instruments amounting to Rs. Nil (31 March 2019 Rs. 871.27) and
interest expense on finance component of financial instruments amounting to Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs. 120.01).

The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Group does not have any
unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Global Health Pandemic

The outbreak of COVID-19 in many countries has brought about disruptions to businesses around the world and uncertainty to the global economy. The Company is
closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of it’s business, including how it will impact its employees, vendors and business partners. The Company
based on the information available to date, both internal and external, considered the uncertainty relating to the COVID-19 pandemic in assessing its impact. Based on
the current estimates, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of assets, and does not foresee any material adverse impact on its operations. As the
outbreak continues to evolve, the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic condition.

There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period.

Previous year figures have been audited by a firm of Chartered accountants other than S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP.

As per our report attached of even date

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

Sd/-
per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Sd/-
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Managing Director
DIN:00008985

Sd/-
Vikas Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 July 2020

Sd/-
Dr. B Abhinay
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01681273

Sd/-
Uma Shanker Mantha
Company Secretary
Membership n0:A21035
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KIMS

HCSPITALS

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered Address

E-mail Id Folio No /Client ID DPID

I/We, being the member(s) of shares of the above named company. Hereby appoint

Name : E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature:

or failing him

Name : | E-mail 1d:

Address:

Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote( on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 18™ Annual
General Meeting of the company, to be held on Monday, the 24™ day of August, 2020 at 3.00 PM, at
“KIMS Hospitals” # 1-8-31/1, Minister’s Road, Secunderabad - 500003 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Sl Resolution(S) Vote

No. For Against

1. | To consider and adopt the audited standalone and consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31* March 2020
and the reports of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) and Auditors
thereon.

2. | Appointment of Ms. D. Anitha as a director liable to retire by rotation:

3. | Payment of remuneration to Cost Auditor M/s. Sagar & Associates, for
the financial year 2020-21.

158



Signed this day of 2020

KIMS

HCSPITALS

Affix
Revenue
Stamps

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder
Note:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the

(O8]

Registered Office of the Company at “KIMS Hospitals” # 1-8-31/1, Minister’s Road,
Secunderabad - 500003, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A proxy need not be a member of the company.

In case the appointer is a body corporate the proxy form should be signed under its seal or be
signed by an office or an attorney duly authorized by it and an authenticated copy of such
authorization should be attached to the proxy form.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of such number of members not exceeding fifty and holding
in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying
voting rights. Further a member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights, may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not
act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient but names of all the joint
holders should be stated.
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KIMS

HCSPITALS

KRISHNA INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558
Regd. office: # 1-8-31/1, Minister’s Road, Secunderabad, Telangana — 500003

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 18™ Annual General Meeting of the company, held on
Monday, the 24™ day of August, 2020 at 3.00 PM, at “KIMS Hospitals” # 1-8-31/1, Minister’s Road,
Secunderabad - 500003,

Name and Address of the Shareholder(s)

If Proxy please mention and sign here

If Shareholder(s) please sign here Signature
Name of Proxy

Note:

(1) Shareholders/Proxy holders as the case may be are requested to produce the attendance slip duly
signed at the entrance of the Meeting venue.

(2) Members are requested to advise the change of their address, if any, to the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent, KFin Technologies Private Limited Selenium, Tower- B, Plot No 31 & 32
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad, Telangana 500032.
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Our Departments

Accident & Emergency Care
Anaesthesiology

Centre for Breast Diseases
Cardiology

Cardio Thoracic Surgery
Dermatology & Cosmetology
Dental

Diabetology & Endocrinology
ENT

Epilepsy Centre

Fertility Centre

Genetic Counselling &
Evaluation

Intensive Care

Internal Medicine

Joint Replacement Surgery
Laboratory & Blood Bank
Medical Gastroenterology
Medical Oncology
Neonatology

Nephrology

Neurology

Neurosurgery

Nuclear Medicine
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Ophthalmology

Organ Transplantation -
Kidney, Liver, Pancreas,
Bone Marrow, Heart & Lung

Orthopaedics

Paediatrics

Paediatric Cardiac Surgery
Physiotherapy

Plastic Surgery
Psychology

Psychiatry

Pulmonology

Radiation Oncology
Radiology

Rheumatology

Robotic Surgery Centre
Speech Therapy

Spine Surgery

Surgical Gastroenterology
Surgical Oncology
Urology

Urogynaecology

Vascular Surgery

Wellness Clinic



Providing Comprehensive & Compassionate
Healthcare to Telangana & Andhra Pradesh

SECUNDERABAD

* 1000 bedded hospital

* |SO 9001-2015 certified
* NABH accredited

KONDAPUR

® 200 bedded hospital

* Multi-specialty hospital
* NABH accredited

NELLORE

® 250 operational beds

® Super-specialty hospital
* NABH accredited

RAJAHMUNDRY
® 120 operational beds
* NABH accredited

SRIKAKULAM
® 200 operational beds

ONGOLE
® 350 operational beds
® Multi-specialty hospital

VISAKHAPATNAM (KIMS-ICON Hospital)
® 434 operational beds
® Super-specialty hospital

ANANTAPUR (KIMS-SAVEERA Hospital)
® 300 operational beds
® Super-specialty hospital

KURNOOL
® 200 operational beds
® Super-specialty hospital

KIMS

CUDDLES

MOTHER & CHILD CENTRE

® Exclusive Mother & Child Centre in Kondapur
(An unit of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Pvt. Ltd)
* Comprehensive High Risk Obstetrics, Gynaecology.
Urogynaecology, Fertility, Poediatrics and Neonatology
® Fetal Medicine Unit with 4D Ultrasound Scanning
® | evel 3 NICU Care



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Ltd.

Regd. Office: 1-8-31/1, Minister Road,

Secunderabad - 500 003, Telangana, India.

Ph: +91-40-4488 5000/5184, Fax: +91 -40-27840980
cs@kimshospitals.com



